
Page 1 of 2 
 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE BEACH      
115 US Highway 17 North, Surfside Beach, SC 29575 
Web:  www.surfsidebeach.org 
 (843) 913-6111     (843) 238-5432 
 

TOWN COUNCIL Regular MEETING 
Council chambers 

 Tuesday, APRIL 23, 2013  6:30 p.m. 
 

A G E N D A 
 

  1.  CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Douglas F. Samples 
 
  2.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Pastor John Schafer, LC3 
Low Country Community Church 
 

  3.   AGENDA APPROVAL 
 
  4.   MINUTES APPROVAL  
 A.   Special Meeting, April 1, 2013 
 B.   Regular Meeting April 9, 2013 
 
  5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – 3-minutes per speaker 
 
  6.   COMMUNICATIONS 
 A.   Proclamation #13-83 Peace Officers Memorial Day 
 B.   Department Reports 
  i.   Finance   
  ii.   Recreation 
  iii.  Public Works 
 C.   Administrator’s Report  
  i. Update on Current Events 
  ii. Consensus Items - Parking Committee Recommendations 
   a.  Pier Parking Lot one way in and one way out 
                       b.  Lower speed limit on Ocean Boulevard from 30 mph to 25 mph 
     
  7.   BUSINESS 
 A. Second Reading Ordinance #13-0742, amend Chapter 17, Article IX, §17-
905, ¶(d) to Establish Completion Timeline, and to add §17-914, Violation Enforcement, 
Director Morris 
 B.   Second Reading Ordinance #13-0743, amend Chapter 17, Article IV, §17-
395 and §17-420, Parking in C-3 Amusement Commercial District, Director Morris  
 C. Resolution #13-132 In Support of the Marketplace Fairness Act (S336 and 
HR 684) 
 
 



Town of Surfside Beach Regular Town Council Meeting 
Town Council Chambers  Tuesday, April 23, 2012 
Agenda, Continued 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

  7.   BUSINESS, continued 
 D. Resolution #13-133 In Opposition To Reduction or Elimination of the Tax 
Exemption On Municipal Bond Interest 
 E. Historical Board Request for Small Purchases, Administrator Fellner 
 F. Senior Citizens Committee Recommendation – using Town Logo – expenditures 
for printing and paper, Administrator Fellner 
 G. Committee Resignation – Recreation/Special Events Committee, member 
Lynne Parker resigned 04/17/2013 (May be deferred until after Executive Session.) 
 
  8.   DISCUSSION – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town 
Council. 
 A.   Organizational Wellness Assessment, Mayor Samples  
 B.   Drug Paraphernalia, Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry and Councilmember 
Kohlmann 
 C.   Article VII, Landscaping & Tree Protection, Councilmember Kohlmann 
 D.    Dog Park Sign and Resolution, Councilmember Stevens 
 
  9.   PUBLIC COMMENTS – 5-minutes per speaker 
 
10.   COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
11.   EXECUTIVE SESSION - Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss the 
appointment of a person to a public body and Pursuant to Town Code of Ordinances 
and Town Code §2-61(f) to consider vacancy on the Recreation/Special Events 
Committee. 
 
12.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Friday – Sunday, April 26, 27, and 28, from 9 a.m. to 1 p.m. - Public Works at 740 Sandy 
Lane, will be accepting  paints, pesticides, herbicides, solvents, gasoline mixtures, aerosols, 
batteries, corrosive materials, cleaning products, fluorescent bulbs, computers, fax machines, 
monitors, televisions, DVD players, printers, stereos, VCR players.  Items NOT accepted:  
medical waste, explosives, radioactive materials, large appliances (refrigerators and air 
conditioners.) 



 

Page 1 of 23 
 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  2 
  APRIL 1, 2013 6:30 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.
 7 

   6 

 Mayor Samples called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Mayor Samples, Mayor Pro Tempore 8 
Mabry, and Councilmembers Dodge, Kohlmann, Johnson, Smith and Stevens were in attendance.  A 9 
quorum was present. Others present:  Administrator Fellner, Interim Police Chief Keziah, and Town Clerk 10 
Herrmann.    11 
 12 
 2.  
 14 

PUBLIC COMMENTS – AGENDA ITEMS 13 

 My name is Ryan Swaim.  I’m the general manager of Dunes Realty in Garden City.  As I said, 15 
I’m Ryan Swaim, Dunes Realty, and we manage 204 properties in Surfside, both houses and 16 
condominiums.  Without going into the debate on the parking ordinance itself, and I can speak about that 17 
for a while, as you might imagine, I, I wanted to try to work out one possible compromise.  To manage 18 
those 204 properties we employee a large number of people.  Some of them drive Dunes Realty vehicles, 19 
which are easily recognized as being vendors.  Most of them, however, drive their own personal vehicles; 20 
their own cars, pickup trucks, et cetera.  On any given Saturday we have maintenance people, 21 
housekeepers, inspectors, linen delivery people, and bed setup crews all driving up and down the 22 
boulevard in Surfside and on the side roads, and last Saturday was our first busy check-in day of the 23 
year, and at least one of them was ticketed for parking on the shoulder between the sidewalk and the 24 
road.  The reason he did so was because he was a, an inspector there to assist two housekeepers.  They 25 
were parked under the house, and the back car was up to the sidewalk.  He couldn’t pull in to the 26 
driveway without blocking the sidewalk.  So he pulled onto the shoulder, and was inside for ten minutes 27 
and came back out and found a parking ticket on the car.  What I’d like to be able to do, if, if we can’t 28 
change the ordinance, which I understand is probably not gonna happen, is to have some sort of 29 
exception for employees of vacation rental managers.  Condominiums allow us to put a placard on 30 
dashboard of the car that says this is a Dunes Realty employee or a contractor working for Dunes Realty, 31 
and we’re hoping that that would help.  Dennis McElveen’s joined me back here from Garden City Realty.  32 
He’s one of our friendly competitors, I guess, and has the same concerns, and Mil Servant just got back 33 
in town from Surfside Realty.  But between the, the five companies essentially, or really six, that manage 34 
property in Surfside, five or six hundred properties that need to be taken care of by all these employees 35 
on any given Saturday, and any solution that we could have would be greatly appreciated. 36 
 37 
 My name is Dennis McElveen, and I am with Garden City Realty, and have been employed there 38 
since 1977.  Thank you, Mr. Mayor and Council, for giving me just a few minutes to share my thoughts.  I 39 
concur with Ryan and hope that there’s something our council can do to help us with our employees who 40 
are working diligently to get our properties ready for our vacationers who are coming in and also for our 41 
property owners.  I own a home in Surfside.  I have since the early 80s, and a, it’s important to me.  I’ve 42 
seen a lot of things happen over the years, and a, you know, our, our tourists and our guests are very 43 
important to us and I know that you recognize that.  It’s one of the things that that keeps us going, and a, 44 
helps us thrive.  Surfside Beach is a great place, and a, you know, hope, and I’m sure it will continue to  45 
be, and a, and I hope our council sees the value in trying to help take care of our guests once they’re 46 
here.  I was talking a few minutes ago, I have been in business a long time, and there’s nothing that 47 
upsets a guest more than to have a car towed or to be ticketed for something that they really don’t know 48 
about, and I know that there’s a lot of education that we will be trying to undertake to help our guests 49 
understand what we’re facing here in Surfside, but we would certainly love and hope that you as our 50 
councilmembers would, you know, help us accomplish our goals so that our, our guests are, feel 51 
appreciated, and a, instead of sometimes maybe not being appreciated.  So I appreciate your help, and 52 
again for our folks that are trying to work to get these properties ready, you know, we, we have Garden 53 
City Realty decals that we can put on the dash or hang from the, a, you know, the mirror or whatever to 54 
help identify those, if, if that’s a possibility.  So, again, thank you for your time. 55 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 2 of 23 
 

 56 
 Ron Ott, 7th Avenue North.  I think one of the really nicest privilege [sic] that this, that residents of 57 
this town has is to be able to drive your golf cart to the beach and be able to park for free.  It, it’s, it is a 58 
privilege.  What I don’t like to do is go there and find no parking and take a paid parking area.  If we could 59 
somehow, maybe put out a little more definition on where we can park, maybe even back a little bit right 60 
off the beach, a, and to keep us off these, a, the toll parking, and let the, let the town make the money on 61 
the parking meters without having us in there, and it is a privilege and we appreciate it.  Thank you very 62 
much. 63 
 64 
 Gene Maruca, 7th Ave. South, and also representing Old Colony Realty.  I concur 100-percent 65 
with the two gentlemen that smoke, spoke on the problems we’re gonna encounter Saturday.  Please 66 
keep in mind the window that we face is very narrow.  Checkout is in the vicinity of 10 o’clock; check in is 67 
in the vicinity of 2 o’clock, and there’s a lot that has to be done by our staffs in that time.  So, whatever the 68 
council can come up with to help would be greatly appreciated and beneficial in the long run.  Thank you. 69 
 70 
 Harry Kohlmann, 1610 South Ocean Boulevard.  I agree with the real, the Dunes gentleman and 71 
the Garden City and Mr. Maruca.  It’s not only gonna be Saturdays, though.  It’s gonna be throughout the 72 
week.  You have landscapers.  You have pool guys.  You have emergency repairs on air conditioners.  73 
You know, there’s, there’s a lot of service oriented people, so you have to think of a way to, possibly a 74 
town placard or a business placard.  It should be only for a limited amount of time, though.  It shouldn’t be 75 
an all-day thing.  It should be, you know, you’re going into clean a house, you’re going to clean a pool, it’s 76 
not going to the beach for four hours, and it should be on a company car.  Thank you. 77 
 78 
 Carrie Johnson, 9th Avenue South.  When it comes to the golf carts, I would like to see decals like 79 
the residents get for your cars to be able to park free also on the golf carts.  But I would like to see that 80 
apply to beach accesses, as well, that you can only park in those beach accesses for golf carts if you 81 
have a decal.  Let these rental golf carts park at the meters and feed them (**) for good income.  Thank 82 
you. 83 
 84 
 3.  BUSINESS.
 86 

   85 

A.  Town Code of Ordinances Chapter 9, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article I. 87 
 88 

 Mayor Samples introduced the business item and suggested beginning with Section 9-16, 89 
explaining that that section was discussed at the last regular council meeting and deals specifically with 90 
golf cart parking and registration. 91 

 92 
 Mr. Smith moved to suspend the rules to allow discussion.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in 93 
favor.  Motion Carried. 94 

 95 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Good evening, everybody.  I would first like to explain a little background on how 96 
we got back to this ordinance in the first place so that y’all can understand.  When we had the reading on 97 
this ordinance there was one sentence under the registration stickers that threw it all into a loop, and 98 
none of us caught it at all.  Basically, the parking decals, which are the round stickers, which everybody 99 
remembers is they’re for parking.  The square stickers are registration stickers, and registration stickers 100 
have nothing to do with parking.  If you read the newsletter that Mary Ellen Abrams typed so very well, it 101 
was, it was done exactly the way the ordinance was intended to be.  Since that mistake was made, I 102 
agreed to do the workshop.  However, I think it could’ve been done much easier by just removing the 103 
sentence that was added to the original ordinance.  Now we’re at a workshop and I understand now that 104 
there are other things in Article I that needs to be addressed, not just this issue.  What I’d like to say is 105 
that now that we’re back at it, I almost feel like we’re going back like the overlay again, and I would like to 106 
hope that because we’re already in the season for the parking that we could do this in a calm, collected 107 
manner, and do what’s best for the town, and I don’t believe that we’re gonna do it all now, because we 108 
don’t have our benchmark year, yet, and we really don’t know what’s gonna happen.  I did  compile a little 109 
list of things together and ideas, and it doesn’t mean that there’re gonna work.  It doesn’t mean anything.  110 
I just want to make sure we all touch upon them.  The golf carts at the beach accesses; there’s a lot more 111 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 3 of 23 
 

to just saying well, let’s let them park there for free or let’s enforce it there.  We need to know what can be 112 
enforced, what signs can be done, what staff is capable of doing, because I have heard some people say 113 
we have really overburdened staff very quickly with this whole parking thing.  My concern is to get to at 114 
least tonight to know where we stand with the parking and the registration stickers, and they are two 115 
separate stickers.  So, we’ll start with the ideas, sir?  Is that fine with you? 116 
 117 
 Mayor Samples:  That is fine.  For clarification purposes, I would like to take you back to a 118 
comment you just made… 119 
 120 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Uh, hum. 121 
 122 
 Mayor Samples:  …which was a, there was one sentence… 123 
 124 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Yes, sir. 125 
 126 
 Mayor Samples:  …can we refer specifically to that language that is in our current ordinance for 127 
the benefit of all of us so that we can all understand what language has led us here. 128 
 129 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Absolutely.  You all have the audience, ordinance in front of you? 130 
 131 
 Mayor Samples:  Oh, yes. 132 
 133 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Okay, this is not the incorrect statement, but I want to read it so that you can 134 
understand what, what I’m saying.  Under (a), 9-6, under (a)  where it says resident and non-resident 135 
residential property owner parking decals, decals issued for full time resident and non-resident residential 136 
property owner vehicles including golf carts, and this was to entitle people to park at metered and pay 137 
station areas whether it be a golf cart or whether it be a vehicle.  That was parking decals.  Underneath 138 
(b) where there’s golf cart registration required and that was registration decals shall be issued for golf 139 
carts, and that went on to say all persons, businesses owning golf carts within the corporate limits and 140 
they were go to the police station and pay a fee, $2 for residents and non-residents, and this is where the 141 
mistake was put in, under (b) item (1) this is the sentence, you’re under registration now, decals shall 142 
allow residents and non-residential property owners to park in golf cart parking and permit only parking 143 
areas in the metered spaces without charge and when space is available.  That was not in the original 144 
submission of the ordinance.  I believe it was added for a clarification purposes, but it just muddied the 145 
ordinance, and it crosses out the decal for these golf carts. 146 
 147 
 Mayor Samples:  Just so I understand, are you saying delete the second sentence or was it are 148 
there changes in that second sentence that got in, or was that… 149 
 150 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  That sentence was never submitted to be in the ordinance. 151 
 152 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 153 
 154 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  It crosses out what we’re trying to do with the parking decals. 155 
 156 
 Mayor Samples:  So if we eliminated the second sentence… 157 
 158 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Right. 159 
 160 
 Mayor Samples:  …in paragraph (b)(1) we’d all be good with parking. 161 
 162 
 Mr. Smith:  No. 163 
 164 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 165 
 166 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I was just clarifying what happened (**two speaking at once.) 167 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 4 of 23 
 

 168 
 Mayor Samples:  (**two speaking at once)…just trying to clarify, just trying to clarify. 169 
 170 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Just clarifying what took place… 171 
 172 
 Mayor Samples:  Very good. 173 
 174 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  …now we’ll go on to this sheet then.  We want to take this one by one? 175 
 176 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, I think I suggested and I still believe that the ordinance in its entirety as 177 
the agenda says Chapter 9, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article I, which is 9-1 through 9-17 needs to be 178 
updated to be consistent with or adjusted for the changes, which this council has approved and 179 
implemented.  Otherwise, if we only deal with 9-16 we all recognize we still have problems with the 180 
ordinance as written, or I think we do. 181 
 182 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, I have some suggestions for updating those, too. 183 
 184 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, good.  Then could we go back and take it in an orderly manner; anyone 185 
have discussion? 186 
 187 
 Mr. Smith:  I would like to work on 9-16 first, because that’s where it deals with the parking decals 188 
and the golf cart registration. 189 
 190 
 Mayor Samples:  Let’s deal with 9-16, and then we’ll get to the rest of the ordinance after that. 191 
 192 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s correct. 193 
 194 
 Mayor Samples:  Very good. 195 
 196 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, Ms. Kohlmann sent us some information about how this 9-16 should be 197 
rewritten and so I’ll just take from here and go over each paragraph, one at a time... 198 
 199 
 Mayor Samples:  Excellent. 200 
 201 
 Mr. Smith:  …and, and get an idea if we can get a consensus on it.  The first paragraph would be 202 
dealing with full time residents, vehicles including golf carts, and in this section, when I’m reading the 203 
word vehicle that includes the word golf cart.  It’s very similar to what’s currently there for full time 204 
residents, the paragraph as it’s currently written says residents and non-residents.  We think that should 205 
be separated, alright.  So for full time residents, they’re entitled to a decal per vehicle upon verification of 206 
vehicle registration in the corporate limits of the town.  And then of course, the same follows about 207 
placement would be according to staff directions, and the decal would allow you to park free of charge at 208 
metered and pay station areas when space is available.  The golf carts, likewise, for residents could park 209 
free of charge either at the golf cart only designated parking spaces or at metered spaces.  In other 210 
words, if you’re a resident and you’ve got a round decal sticker, you can park free anywhere.  So, I’d like 211 
to know if, a, council has any corrections about that paragraph. 212 
 213 
 Mr. Stevens:  If I may, just for a point of clarification, if everybody will take a look at this seal right 214 
behind us, Surfside Beach seal, that is exactly what the parking sticker looks like.  It’s a round seal 215 
sticker.  I’ve got three of ‘em and that’s exactly what they look like.  That allows you to park free. 216 
 217 
 Mayor Samples:  Whether you acquired it legitimately or not. 218 
 219 
 Mr. Smith:  We, we expect people to be honest. 220 
 221 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 5 of 23 
 

 Mayor Samples:  Well, no, I mean I just want to make a point.  I under, I think everybody 222 
understands about the, the seal, right?  We’re all on board.  We understand what the seal is.  Would you 223 
like to read the ordinance as you propose it to read? 224 
 225 
 Mr. Smith:  I’ll be glad to.  For this section, the word vehicle includes golf carts.  Full time resident 226 
vehicles, including golf carts, all persons residing within the corporate limits of the town shall be entitled to 227 
one free decal per vehicle to be issued by the town upon verification that current vehicle registration is 228 
registered in the corporate limits of the town.  Such decal will be placed on the vehicle pursuant to the 229 
instructions given by town hall staff when obtaining the decal.  The decal shall be valid for the calendar 230 
year in which issued.  Said decal will show (1) decal number issued, and (2) year for which decal is valid.  231 
Such decal shall allow the vehicle to park free of charge at metered and pay station areas when space is 232 
available.  Such decal shall also allow golf carts to park free of charge in golf cart only designated parking 233 
areas when space is available, and that applies to full time residents. 234 
 235 
 Mayor Samples:  Excellent.  Can I ask a question? 236 
 237 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes. 238 
 239 
 Mayor Samples:  The only change that I perceive from a policy standpoint is that you’re alluding 240 
to designated golf cart parking spaces. 241 
 242 
 Mr. Smith:  Yeah, we wanted to make it clear that this decal would be put on either motor vehicles 243 
or golf carts.  The golf cart having this decal could park in the golf cart only areas, even though it has a 244 
decal.  We wouldn’t want to be excluded from that, so we’re just making clear by adding that sentence. 245 
 246 
 Mayor Samples:  Which is a new sentence, cause there’s no discussion of that in the current 247 
ordinance (**two speaking at once) golf cart parking areas.  I don’t think you’ll find that in the current 248 
ordinance. 249 
 250 
 Mr. Smith:  You will not. 251 
 252 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay, just for clarification purposes, from a policy standpoint we know what 253 
we’re talking about, so we can convey it to staff who ultimately will bring back the proposed ordinance. 254 
 255 
 Ms. Mabry:  Mr. Mayor, point of information from Mr. Smith, please.  Mr. Smith, that means, what 256 
you’re saying is that golf carts will only park in golf cart areas? 257 
 258 
 Mr. Smith:  No, ma'am.  Golf carts with a sticker, a parking decal… 259 
 260 
 Ms. Mabry:  Right. 261 
 262 
 Mr. Smith:  …that parking decal, can park anywhere that’s a legal parking space. 263 
 264 
 Ms. Mabry:  May I make an amendment, if this is a motion, or… 265 
 266 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, this is just a discussion. 267 
 268 
 Mr. Smith:  Please state what you were concerned about. 269 
 270 
 Ms. Mabry:  Because we have legally registered 232 carts in town now, we have a 152 golf cart 271 
legal parking spaces that we could put our golf carts in and not take up any metered or pay stations, 272 
because there’s a large number of golf parking areas to accommodate them.  I really don’t like the idea of 273 
these golf carts going into metered spaces.  Those spaces are for our visitors and we have enough 274 
parking, clearly, to put a golf cart. 275 
 276 
 (**Audience speaking out.) 277 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 6 of 23 
 

 278 
 Mayor Samples:  Order, order!  Regular order. 279 
 280 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I just want to say being that we’re a beach town.  I think it’s really beneficial to us 281 
to think about using golf carts.  I know that sometimes they’re too many of them.  I know that all too well.  282 
However, with the environment, I think it’s an environmentally friendly thing and I think it’s really nice to 283 
see people on golf carts and it really creates a sense of community, and they stop and talk, and I know 284 
we don’t like the teenagers on ‘em and I agree with that, as well; it’s another issue.  But I still know plenty 285 
of people in town that don’t own vehicles.  They don’t own cars.  I have to be clear about that.  They use 286 
their golf carts to get around town, even as much as to go to Bi-Lo.  So, I think that it’s really 287 
discriminating against, against a lot of people to say because you don’t own a car, you can’t park in a 288 
spot.  They have just as much right, and some of the people have six passenger golf carts, and you know, 289 
you can have a two seater [sic] car take up the spot all day long, and you could have a six passenger golf 290 
cart.  I just don’t see the difference when it comes to that.  That’s just my opinion on it. 291 
 292 
 Mayor Samples:  I understand.  Just for clarification purposes, cause I know we’re talking about 293 
golf carts and golf cart parking, but you made the point earlier the change that you’re talking about, you’re 294 
gonna use the word vehicles and from this point on vehicles refers to golf carts, also. 295 
 296 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes. 297 
 298 
 Mayor Samples:  I presume it applies to mopeds, or what have you.  I mean some people can’t 299 
afford automobiles, you’re right.  For clarification purposes, I want to know the scope of what we’re talking 300 
about.  What we’re talking about is motorcycles, mopeds, golf carts, low speed vehicles? 301 
 302 
 Mr. Smith:  Correct. 303 
 304 
 Mayor Samples:  Bicycles?   305 
 306 
 Mr. Smith:  (laughing) Bicycles don’t usually park at metered spaces.   307 
 308 
 Mayor Samples:  I understand.  Again, I’m trying to get my arms around the scope of it.  To 309 
summarize it, we’re talking about free parking for town residents only. 310 
 311 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s correct. 312 
 313 
 Mayor Samples:  With respect to that paragraph. 314 
 315 
 Mr. Smith:  This paragraph. 316 
 317 
 Mayor Samples:  Including nonresident property owners? 318 
 319 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s a different paragraph. 320 
 321 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 322 
 323 
 Mrs. Mabry:  May I make one more comment.  Your vehicles that you get the little blue stickers 324 
for, they brought in over $116,000 last year.  That was for 212.  Actually, I have the exact number, but I’m 325 
not gonna give it.  So, there was a real value every time you registered your car.  You brought value to 326 
the town.  You didn’t take anything away when you got your little blue sticker.  Well, now when you put 327 
them on every motorized vehicle, you’re starting to do a take-back, and when you do a P&L sheet, and 328 
you see anything that says we’re taking away, then you might want to reconsider at least trying to break 329 
even.  We already lost money; every time you register your car you pay, your golf cart, you pay $2.  So, 330 
you pay $2 for that.  It costs more than that to affix the tag, the little sticker, to get the person to take the 331 
picture, to do the admin work.  So that’s over $2.  So, we’re already losing money.  All I’m saying is that 332 
you should consider not having everything with a motor park on these very valuable metered spaces just 333 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 7 of 23 
 

because you’re a resident.  I mean, we’re actually going backwards.  We’re not going backwards with 334 
your vehicles.  We’ve got value from that, but now you’re starting to do a take away, and we have a 152 335 
parking spaces for golf carts.  Please keep in mind that I’m not saying that you should pay at every 336 
metered space.  I’m just saying that I would prefer if you park in the legal golf cart parking areas that we 337 
already have.      338 
           339 
 Mr. Stevens:  I’ve been a full time resident since I moved in my house in December of 2005.  This 340 
year I got three of the round stickers.  I have yet to park in a paid parking spot, and I’ve been here since 341 
2005, of December.  I’ve yet to even ever park in a paved parking spot, even though I’m a resident.  I got 342 
‘em this year just in case it started pouring down rain and I wanted to go to eat at the Surf café.  I’d like to 343 
be able to drive my car down there and not have to walk in the rain.  So, this is a benefit to the citizens of 344 
this town.  They pay the taxes here.  They pay, they buy their cars, and I guarantee you and you’re not 345 
gonna have a family get all the cars and all the golf carts and travel down to the pier to park.  They’re 346 
gonna get in one car and they’re gonna drive down, and if they go down to eat at the Surf Diner, they’re 347 
helping our business in town make money, and if it’s parking at a beach access, whether it’s 7th Avenue 348 
South, or whether it’s 14th Avenue North, or whether it’s 1st Avenue North, which I usually park my golf 349 
cart in at the beach access, the golf carts can still park in those beach accesses, and that’s where most 350 
people go to park their golf carts.  This is not; I don’t believe that; the sky is not falling here.  This is a 351 
good thing for the people. 352 
 353 
 Mr. Smith:  Prior to golf cart registration, golf carts got round decal stickers for parking, and they 354 
could park anywhere.  This was prior to registering golf carts, which was about what, three or four years 355 
ago.   356 
 357 
 Mayor Samples:  That’s true. 358 
 359 
 Mr. Smith:  So we’re not taking away.  We’re just trying to make it equitable to what it used to be 360 
and eliminate some of the confusion.  A parking decal is round.  A registration decal is square.  Now, the 361 
next paragraph, I’ll be glad to over that one, if there’re no more comments. 362 
 363 
 Mayor Samples:  That’s fine by me.  Any comments?  Okay. 364 
 365 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, the next paragraph nonresident residential property owners, vehicles including 366 
golf carts, and when I use the word vehicle that means golf carts also.  It’s very similar to the first 367 
paragraph, except for a few important facts, and I’m gonna read it, and then I’ll explain it.  All nonresident 368 
residential property owners within the corporate limits of the town shall be entitled to one free decal for 369 
one vehicle per property to be issued by the town only upon verification of proof of property ownership.  370 
The name on the vehicle registration must be the same as the name on the property tax records to show 371 
proof of property ownership.  Additional decals may be purchased for the sum of $40 for each additional 372 
vehicle upon verification of proof of property ownership.  Such decal will be placed on the vehicle 373 
pursuant to instructions given by the town hall staff when obtaining the decal.  The decal shall be valid for 374 
the calendar year in which issued.  Said decal will show (1) decal number issued, and (2) year for which 375 
decal is valid.  Such decal shall allow the vehicle to park free of charge in metered and pay station areas 376 
when space is available.  Such decal shall also allow golf carts to park free of charge in golf cart only 377 
designated parking areas when space is available.  The paragraph is similar to the first one except for 378 
nonresidents they only get one free decal, if you want more than one, you have to pay $40 for it.   379 
 380 
 Mayor Samples:  Questions or comments?  The rules have been suspended.  $40 a pop for 381 
nonresidents.  Let’s just throw this out, it doesn’t matter who the house is titled to, deeded to, in terms of it 382 
being a business or otherwise, right? 383 
 384 
 Mr. Smith:  Well, it says the name on the vehicle registration… 385 
 386 
 Mayor Samples:  Must be the same. 387 
 388 
 Mr. Smith:  …must agree with the name on the property. 389 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 8 of 23 
 

 390 
 Mayor Samples:  Correct.  So as long as the two names are the same, it’s fine, right. 391 
 392 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s how I would see it. 393 
 394 
 Mr. Johnson:  Often times rental properties are in the name of an LLC.  I don’t know how you 395 
would deal with it then. 396 
 397 
 Mr. Smith:  If it’s an LLC, it’s probably not one owner.  That means there are multiple owners and 398 
they would have a problem trying to get this one free sticker.   399 
 400 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, the LLC, if they have a golf cart in the name of the LLC… 401 
 402 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s right, they could get it. 403 
 404 
 Mayor Samples:  Right, okay.  Alright, any other questions, comments? 405 
 406 
 Mr. Smith:  And that one free sticker could be put on an automobile or a golf cart. 407 
 408 
 Mayor Samples:  Or a motorcycle, so long as it was registered. 409 
 410 
 Mr. Smith:  Yeah. 411 
 412 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 413 
 414 
 Mr. Smith:  The next paragraph has to do with the special issue decals, if you are fisherman and 415 
buy an annual pass you get parking in Yaupon parking lot.  We felt it appropriate that this ordinance 416 
address that issue so it would be, so everybody would know about it.  Paragraph 3, limited issues, special 417 
parking with the approval of town council, the town administrator may issue special parking decals, i.e. to 418 
purchasers of annual fishing passes.  These special decals are limited to parking in Yaupon parking lot 419 
when space is available.  These decals will be different color than the full time resident and nonresident 420 
property owner parking decal.  That’s the end of the paragraph. 421 
 422 
 Mayor Samples:  Did I understand you to say Yaupon parking only? 423 
 424 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes. 425 
 426 
 Mayor Samples:  They get free parking in Yaupon, but if they park at the pier, they gotta pay. 427 
 428 
 Mr. Smith:  If they park at the pier they gotta pay. 429 
 430 
 Mayor Samples:  Unless they’re a town resident. 431 
 432 
 Mr. Smith:  Well, if they’re a town resident then they would not need this decal.  433 
 434 
 Mayor Samples:  Correct. 435 
 436 
 Mr. Smith:  These are for people who buy annual fishing passes and live outside the corporate 437 
limits. 438 
 439 
 Mayor Samples:  So these are for nonresident fishermen. 440 
 441 
 Mr. Smith:  They would be the only one that would request it. 442 
 443 
 Mayor Samples:  Is that the only special category? 444 
 445 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 9 of 23 
 

 Mr. Smith:  Well, we made it kind of general so that if there were other categories that the council 446 
cam up with you wouldn’t have to change the ordinance.  Council would just have to instruct the 447 
administrator on what kind of categories. 448 
 449 
 Mayor Samples:  Then I suggest changing it in other words to for example, but Micki will pick that 450 
up, I’m sure. 451 
 452 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay.  We do expect Micki to correct it, the proper English for the ordinance. 453 
 454 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay, any other comments? 455 
 456 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, the next one, I wasn’t quite sure in working with Beth how to put this, so we just 457 
put it as a note, and it’s to make sure that the people over in Deerfield and all and the commercial guys 458 
feel like we’re treating them right.  We said this, beach access parking, all golf carts registered, 459 
unregistered, commercial, may park free of charge in all beach accesses when space is available, except 460 
where prohibited by signs.  There’re some beach accesses where they have signs that says no parking. 461 
 462 
 Mayor Samples:  Yeah, emergency vehicles and that sort of thing.  Absolutely. 463 
 464 
 Mr. Smith:  In other words, they couldn’t park in the parking areas where there’re pay stations 465 
where there are signs that say you have to pay.   466 
 467 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I don’t want to throw you under the bus, Mark, but I was rather hoping that Mr. 468 
Johnson would’ve come up with something, cause I know that this has been a thorn in your side for a 469 
while, so I’m looking forward to hearing there’s some, cause I don’t really have a preference on the beach 470 
accesses.  I put this in here so that we would remember to discuss it, cause it is something that needs to 471 
be discussed.  So I’m not so sure, I don’t park down there at the beach accesses, and I know you do, and 472 
you feel strongly about it.  So, I’d like to know your ideas about it. 473 
 474 
 Mr. Johnson:  Speaking with other residents, I just think that there is a parking problem or lack 475 
thereof parking spaces in many beach accesses.  Sometimes it’s insanely crazy down there trying to get; 476 
it’s like trying to get ten pounds of potatoes in a five pound sack, so to speak.  Up to this point, you know, 477 
I was pretty lenient to go along with everything.  But, I feel pretty strong about the beach access. 478 
 479 
 Mayor Samples:  So what are you suggesting? 480 
 481 
 Mr. Johnson:  Well, right now I mean it’s; basically what this does is nothing.  I mean it continues 482 
what’s being done now.  I don’t know.  We could use stickers; require stickers there.  I don’t know. 483 
 484 
 Mayor Samples:  Again, this is for nonresidents? 485 
 486 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes, nonresidents and commercial. 487 
 488 
 Mr. Johnson:  And commercial. 489 
 490 
 Mr. Smith:  In other words, anyone with a golf cart could park at the beach accesses free of 491 
charge, except where prohibited. 492 
 493 
 Ms. Mabry:  Well, rather than taking up the meters, and letting anybody park anywhere, and so 494 
far we’re there, if we sold passes for golf carts in neighboring areas, I don’t have a problem with that.  But 495 
they need to bring some value.  Now going to a beach access with your golf cart, you’re not help, you’re 496 
not contributing to any of the amenities that we have provided.  You’re taking up a parking space that a 497 
resident may want to use, and you know, we want to be good neighbors.  But what did we put the meters 498 
down there for?  Why do we have pay stations, if we’re gonna eliminate anybody that could possibly 499 
come to Surfside Beach and give ‘em free parking.  We’re gonna give it to anything with a motor on it, if 500 
you live in town.  We’re gonna now give it to you, if you fish.  And now we’re gonna give it to you if you 501 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 10 of 23 
 

have a golf cart and you live across the street.  Why did we even put pay stations in or meters.  It was so 502 
that we could continue to improve our beaches to make them as pristine and desirable as they can be.  503 
So I would actually like somebody to come and visit and put a dollar in, and this is where we get our 504 
money.  So I’d prefer ‘em to park at a pay station. 505 
 506 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Point of information, Mr. Mayor.  The fishing sticker, doesn’t that go with the 507 
pass, Micki, when you get a license for fishing, do you get one of those, or do they have to buy that, or 508 
are we now giving, cause I got lost in that translation there. 509 
 510 
 Ms. Fellner:  You get a sticker as part of the whole package. 511 
 512 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  It’s part of the package, so we’re not adding that.  We just put that in this paper to 513 
clarify this law for everybody.  I don’t believe it’s been on paper anywhere, right?  I couldn’t find it 514 
anywhere.   515 
 516 
 Ms. Fellner:  I know that at one time it was on the website, but I don’t believe it’s there anymore.  517 
But there used to be a charge when Mr. Booth first started, when Yaupon lot first came out.  But there, 518 
that has not been the case for a long time. 519 
 520 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Okay, I just wanted to make sure that people didn’t think that we were now giving 521 
away a free fishing sticker.  It is included in part of the pier fees that are paid and those fees, as we all 522 
know, bring in a lot of revenue to this town.  Thank you. 523 
 524 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you.  (**)  I’m sure I should’ve known; I didn’t know, and that kind of 525 
explains why fishing brings in quite a bit of revenue also then I would suggest. 526 
 527 
 Mr. Smith:  Fishermen tend to stay down there for very long times, so if they are not residents of 528 
the town, to encourage ‘em to buy the annual pass, I think that’s why the town is giving ‘em that parking 529 
sticker, but requiring them to park in the Yaupon lot. 530 
 531 
 Mayor Samples:  That’s where they’re required, Yaupon? 532 
 533 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes. 534 
 535 
 Mayor Samples:  We have no signage that indicates any of that, right?  None whatsoever.  I just 536 
think… 537 
 538 
 Ms. Fellner:  That’s because the only people with regard to the Yaupon lot.  They’re issued a 539 
yellow sticker.  It’s a totally different color than our regular decals. 540 
 541 
 Mayor Samples:  Is that what those mean? 542 
 543 
 Ms. Fellner:  Yes, that means the only place you can park is in that lot, and those are only issued 544 
to fisherman.  So when they get issued, their package that they buy, their annual pass, when they go in 545 
there and purchase that, they’re given, they’re told that they can come up here and then get that annual 546 
sticker.  We don’t let them dispense those stickers down there.   547 
 548 
 Mayor Samples:  And all that was conveyed to Lanier? 549 
 550 
 Ms. Fellner:  Yes. 551 
 552 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay, okay. 553 
 554 
 Ms. Fellner:  It was to both Carrie Loomis and Scott Diggs that we had that arrangement. 555 
 556 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 11 of 23 
 

 Mayor Samples:  Well, I mean it has to be otherwise what happens if you got a change in 557 
personnel or it’s not, you know, it’s one of those things that might fall through the cracks. 558 
 559 
 Ms. Fellner:  Right and all of those are tied to an actual name, vehicle tag number.   560 
 561 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay.  Thank you. 562 
 563 
 Ms. Mabry:  Mr. Mayor, could we put some language in there to denote that decals for annual 564 
fishing passes are automatically given.  I think that would clear that up a great deal. 565 
 566 
 Mayor Samples:  My expectation is after we come out of here tonight there will be clear 567 
instruction to staff to draft a revised ordinance, hopefully for a first reading at which point I’m sure we’ll all 568 
be studying it again.    569 
 570 
 Mr. Smith:  Let me just also make a comment.  After we get this done, I think it would be 571 
advisable for staff to have some written rules that could be laminated and handed to the people who do 572 
the parking enforcement so that they clearly have some rules as to which they can follow and they don’t 573 
have to remember what to do, but it’s written down for ‘em.  But, getting back to the beach access 574 
parking, I just feel that this year, we need to let the golf carts park free at the beach accesses when space 575 
is available, and I fully understand that we might get overwhelmed, but it’s not gonna be every day.  It’s 576 
gonna be July the 4th weekend.  So all the other times we’re gonna have plenty of parking for golf carts at 577 
the beach accesses, and I just think it’s a good idea to allow that.  Mr. Mayor, would you like me to go to 578 
the next paragraph? 579 
  580 
 Mayor Samples:  Everybody in agreement?   581 
 582 
 Ms. Mabry:  No. 583 
 584 
 Mr. Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, I would just like to point out that at this point nothing on the beach 585 
accesses would change.   586 
 587 
 Mayor Samples:  Correct.  Let’s move on. 588 
 589 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, the next… 590 
 591 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  We need to make it a little less painful.  I would like, again, I said it at the last 592 
meeting, maybe if, and I’m not saying an elaborate plan, but I really firmly believe that it would benefit all 593 
of us if we had a comprehensive plan that could take place over a period of time so that your needs, you 594 
know, the needs of the people that park at the beach accesses could be addressed.  We’re not going to 595 
solve all of this tonight.  We already know that, and I think it’s really important to see it down on paper so 596 
that can tweak it where it needs to be tweaked, instead of watching staff go back and do double the work, 597 
and I think that’s really important and I would like this council to have a consensus to figure out a way to 598 
direct staff or work with staff to do that. 599 
 600 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, I think, if I could, that’s why we’re here, we’re having a special meeting, 601 
okay, is to go through this.  You know, I know it’s an arduous process.  There’s no doubt about it.  Before 602 
we leave tonight, I think we have some real business issues that we have to address and that we should 603 
come up with some resolution that isn’t in 9-16, but we have an obligation.  We’ve got a season going on 604 
down there.  One of the things we don’t want to happen is to discourage business in our town on Ocean 605 
Boulevard, and the fact is that people do get ticketed.  We all knew when we hired a private for-profit firm 606 
and made them responsible for writing tickets they were gonna do a bang-up job, okay.  If anybody had 607 
any doubt about it, rest assured they’re writing tickets, okay, and we haven’t even started.  So before we 608 
get into the middle of the season, I believe it is incumbent upon us to continue to go through the details. 609 
You’re right, we’re not gonna resolve all the issues.  There are some important issues that we, by golly, 610 
better figure a way out to resolve.  So, Mr. Smith, if you would continue. 611 
 612 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 12 of 23 
 

 Mr. Smith:  The next section is golf cart registration required.  Most of these words are in the 613 
current ordinance with just a few changes, but I’m gonna read it as is, as we’ve written it.  Golf cart 614 
registration required.  Registration decals shall be issued for golf carts.  This decal is only for identification 615 
and informational purposes only.  This is not a parking decal.  All persons and businesses owning golf 616 
carts within the corporate limits of town, including those entities which may lease, lend, borrow or 617 
purchase golf carts for the purpose of renting to the public shall register their golf carts with the town 618 
police department.  Proof of ownership and liability insurance is required.  Golf cart decals shall be placed 619 
by police staff in such a manner that would enable the registration decal to be clearly visible to the 620 
operator of the golf cart while being operated.  The issue decal will show (1) registration number, (2) 621 
years for which decal is valid, and (3) all applicable golf cart rules.  (i)  Full time residents and nonresident 622 
residential property owners shall pay a fee of $2 per golf cart.  Decals shall be distinguished by blue 623 
lettering on a white back ground.  The South Carolina State golf cart registration must have an address 624 
within the corporate limits of the town.  I’d like to stop there and get discussion on that paragraph. 625 
 626 
 Mayor Samples:  I don’t have a problem with it. 627 
 628 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay.   629 
 630 
 Mayor Samples:  Anyone else? 631 
 632 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, next paragraph, commercially owned golf carts shall be charged a fee of $5 for 633 
each golf cart.  The decal shall be distinguished by white lettering on a red background.  The registration 634 
decal shall state paid parking only, meaning that operators of commercial golf carts must pay applicable 635 
fees while parking at meters and in pay station areas.  That was added for clarification.  That’s the end. 636 
 637 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you.  Any comments?   638 
 639 
 Ms. Dodge:  I commend Councilman Smith.  I think this is well written.  I think it’s clear.  If 640 
somebody has a problem with this, or a question, if they read it carefully, they’ll find the answer.  Thank 641 
you. 642 
 643 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, I can’t take full credit.  Ms. Kohlmann was a big participant.  Fact is, she 644 
did a lot of it, too.   645 
 646 
 Ms. Dodge:  And also to Ms. Kohlmann.  Thank you. 647 
 648 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, I commend all of us for coming out and doing the work, and we still got a 649 
lot more work to go.  So are you saying we’re done with 9-16?   650 
 651 
 Mr. Smith:  As far as I’m concerned. 652 
 653 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay, we’re done with 9-16.   654 
 655 
 Ms. Herrmann:  I know that you’ve addressed the portions that you want changed, but we need to 656 
make sure that council’s intentions to leave the disabled veterans, and Purple Heart, and handicapped, 657 
and employee stickers, if you intend for that to remain… 658 
 659 
 Mr. Smith:  That remains the same.    660 
 661 
 Ms. Herrmann:  Thank you. 662 
 663 
 Mayor Samples:  Appreciate that.   664 
 665 
 Mr. Smith:  Fact is,  666 
 667 
 Mayor Samples:  I misspoke. You’re right, those are three items at the end. 668 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 13 of 23 
 

 669 
 Mr. Smith:  These paragraphs A and B correspond to the current paragraphs, A and B.  670 
Paragraphs C and D do not change, and E does not change. 671 
 672 
 Mayor Samples:  Let me ask, Councilman Smith, would it be appropriate to address the business 673 
concerns that were raised to us in this section or in another section or not at all? 674 
 675 
 Mr. Smith:  I think this is the time to do it, because we are talking about parking decals, and so 676 
now I believe is the time to do it, to talk about the business concerns. 677 
 678 
 Mayor Samples:  Any other comments?  Any other members?  Ms. Kohlmann? 679 
 680 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  (No response.) 681 
 682 
 Mr. Stevens:  We definitely need to address it. 683 
 684 
 Mayor Samples:  Do you have any suggestions? 685 
 686 
 Mr. Stevens:  We need to come up with something for all service vehicles.  You know, we have, 687 
naturally we have the real estate companies that have to do their work, that have to check people in, 688 
check people out.  We have people helping, going down there and do work like plumbers, FedEx, UPS; 689 
so there’s a lot of different services people that are gonna be down there. 690 
 691 
 Mayor Samples:  Do you have any suggestions?  That’s alright.  That’s fine.   692 
 693 
 Mr. Stevens:  Possibly some type of (**). 694 
 695 
 Mayor Samples:  Mrs. Dodge, do you have any suggestions? 696 
 697 
 Ms. Dodge:  I like the idea of their having either a placard that goes on the dashboard that 698 
identifies exactly who they are, or a decal of some sort.  But the placard, I think, would show up.  Any of 699 
our policemen driving by would see that. 700 
 701 
 Mayor Samples:  How about Ms. Mabry?  You got any suggestions? 702 
 703 
 Ms. Mabry:  Yes, sir.  This is a common practice; you’ll see it in Florida and a lot of places, they 704 
do get a placard.  Sometimes it does have a limited time on it.  Most times it does not, and there’s so 705 
many that would be given to each realty company.  When they send their service workers out, they’ll give 706 
‘em a placard.  When they come back in, they’ll turn it in.  Because, like you said, there’s [sic] 707 
emergencies also, and I want to make one point, if you go down to Dune Realty, and I’ll say this one, their 708 
reservation area is probably from that aisle all the way over here and they have about 25 people taking 709 
reservations.  They also have a slew of houses in Garden City, and a lot of other places.  When they 710 
make that reservation, we prefer that they send ‘em this way.  But if it’s gonna be so difficult for them, 711 
they’re gonna send them to another house.  That’s just the way it’s gonna be.  So we want to make sure 712 
that we’re inviting. The maids have to go in and clean, and they have a very short window.  Saturday is 713 
not a good day for Surfside.  That’s check out and check in, normally, but that doesn’t mean that some 714 
work doesn’t go on through the week.  Placards; we have to do something to accommodate.  They are 715 
paying our taxes, so we have to be careful about how we handle this, and handle it responsibly.         716 
         717 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I agree with the placards, as well; however, how are we gonna handle the 718 
independent people that do have business licenses in town that take care of the pools, that clean houses 719 
and condos?  It’s not only about the real estate companies.  There are a lot of independent people.  I 720 
know I use them.  Young kids starting out, but they pay a business fee.  So how do we control that, as 721 
well? 722 
 723 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 14 of 23 
 

 Mayor Samples:  Well, you know, what I would suggest is there’s no perfect solution.  What I 724 
would suggest is that the predominance of business and revenues that are raised in this town; I’ll say it 725 
again, they come down from the R-3 district.  It’s from R-3. 726 
 727 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  But those people are working in R-3 district.  I know that for a fact.  They’re doing 728 
the pool; I’m saying they don’t come out of Dunes.  I’m not looking for an argument.  I’m giving you facts.   729 
 730 
 Mayor Samples:  What would you suggest? 731 
 732 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I don’t know.  I’ve heard a lot of suggestions. 733 
 734 
 Mayor Samples:  Very good. 735 
 736 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Can I finish, sir. 737 
 738 
 Mayor Samples:  Please do. 739 
 740 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  All I’m doing is making a suggestion. If I don’t have a suggestion for every single 741 
thing, that’s not a bad thing to do.  I’m just saying we need to look at the independent business people.  742 
That’s all I’m asking.  I don’t have the (**) 743 
 744 
 Mayor Samples:  I have a suggestion to make for the independent business people.  What I 745 
believe we should do is sell an annual pass at a fee that they can deal with.  It’s a cost of doing business, 746 
just like getting a business licenses to do business in the town.  I believe they would be happier to pay the 747 
one-time fee for a pass, than to get the $25 ticket, to worry about being towed, to be running down to the 748 
meter in the middle of a job; once again, it’s just simply to sell them a parking pass.  Now we have a 749 
different issue when it comes to the larger what I call mini-hotels that are managed down there, like by the 750 
Dunes Realty Company, because on a regular basis as we said, on Saturdays, they’re managing their 751 
operation. They’re not managing their operation in Surfside Beach.  This creates kind of an impediment.  752 
So I’d like to hear from them.  As you said a placard of some form; with the administrator’s input might be 753 
the way to go.  But in terms of having every landscaper, every pool company, every plumber, every air 754 
conditioner man, every tradesman having a placard, no, no, no.  I think we should sell them a sticker.  I 755 
also believe, frankly, that we should offer that same sticker to people who live in Deerfield; people that 756 
live in the Surf Club.  I think that we’re talking about raising revenue, which is something that we’re 757 
interested in.  It will make people happier by charging them a one-time fee and letting them park as 758 
opposed to ticketing them.  Again, we’re gonna ticket plenty of people this year; not we, we’re gonna say 759 
it’s Lanier.  We’re gonna say it’s not me ticketing you.  It’s Lanier Parking Management.  It’s our 760 
responsibility.  So, I think that we, again, just to keep it simple, I think we sell a sticker to anyone who 761 
wants to buy it, and then we have to work with the larger businesses that butter our bread.  They have a 762 
decision to make; are they gonna put them in Garden City, are they gonna put them on the neck further 763 
south, or are they gonna put ‘em in Surfside Beach.  That’s just my comment.  You may not agree, and 764 
you’re certainly entitled not to agree, but we have a problem that we need to address. 765 
 766 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, do you have a suggested price for this sticker? 767 
 768 
 Mayor Samples:  I bet Micki has a suggestion, if she were forced to come up with one, because I 769 
know she has been looking at what the rates are at the state parks and other places.  I know she’s happy 770 
to do this.   771 
 772 
 Ms. Fellner:  I’m actually not happy to do this (laughter.)  I abhor the thought of parking placards.  773 
That is just an invitation to all kinds of abuse.  It is one of the worst methods.  Having said that, because 774 
we purchased new technology, merchant validation codes are a definite possibility, and some part of 775 
recoupment of that percentage-wise, if council wanted to do that, there are a lot of alternatives, but they 776 
need more time than five minutes here to discuss, and we need probably, I need to have someone from 777 
Lanier come and talk to council just about the different, and it would be probably Carrie Loomis, about the 778 
different use of validation codes.  I am told that there is not a problem putting that in place, so that would 779 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 15 of 23 
 

be certainly my suggestion; not any kind of a placard situation.  These are totally traceable and they can 780 
be limited to an hour, a day, whatever.  It’s a matter of programming the technology, and then you know 781 
exactly who’s using that, and you know exactly where they’re using it, and you know exactly what time 782 
they’re using it, and it’s traceable back to that merchant that you’re giving that validation code to.  So, that 783 
would be my recommendation.  With regard to price for stickers for people that aren’t from this area, I 784 
know that people charge everything.  I mean they tried to do one for, I believe, Isle of Palms at $65, $75.  785 
It’s whatever the market bears.  We have the cheapest parking.  We’re a dollar an hour.  We’ve got south 786 
of us, $1.25 an hour; north of us we got $1.50 an hour, so we’re a pretty big bargain right now.  It’s 787 
whatever the market will bear.  Is $75 outrageous?  If I lived in Deerfield, I’d pay $75. 788 
 789 
 Mr. Stevens:  It’s $75 for how long? 790 
 791 
 Ms. Fellner:  For a seasonal pass. 792 
 793 
 Mayor Samples:  Season. 794 
 795 
 Mr. Stevens:  Okay. 796 
 797 
 Ms. Fellner:  But, you know, it’s whatever council feels the market will bear.   798 
 799 
 Mayor Samples:  Again, just to follow up on that, and to piggy-back on something that I heard 800 
earlier, we’re feeling our way through this first season. 801 
 802 
 Ms. Fellner:  Yes, sir. 803 
 804 
 Mr. Stevens:  Point of information, Myrtle Beach website, Lanier Parking.  The number you can 805 
call is 626.7275.  I called them personally... 806 
 807 
 Ms. Mabry:  Point of order. 808 
 809 
 Mayor Samples:  Ms. Mabry is calling a point of order. 810 
 811 
 Ms. Mabry:  Point of information… 812 
 813 
 Mr. Stevens:  This is a point of information. 814 
 815 
 Ms. Mabry:  Point of information is only to be used to either to address the chair or to ask 816 
permission to address another councilmember to get information.  It’s not to give information to the 817 
audience. 818 
  819 
 Mr. Stevens:  Okay, well, you’re right.  I’ll do it in a minute. 820 
 821 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you. 822 
 823 
 Mr. Smith:  I think I would like to ask Ms. Fellner if she could tell us what the parking fees are in 824 
Myrtle Beach for a annual pass, or weekly pass, or daily pass.  Do they have those things? 825 
 826 
 Ms. Fellner:  I’m actually not aware of that.  I will look into that.   827 
 828 
 Mr. Smith:  Alright, and then the other question, could you tell me, the validation code is 829 
something you would enter at the pay station by way of a cell phone or what. 830 
 831 
 Ms. Fellner:  You could enter it by way of a cell phone.  It could be a number of different ways.  It 832 
could be a card, you know, there are many different ways to do it, but it would all be traceable back to 833 
that.   834 
 835 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 16 of 23 
 

 Mr. Smith:  And you could also do it at the parking meters. 836 
 837 
 Ms. Fellner:  Yes.    838 
 839 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay. 840 
 841 
 Ms. Fellner:  At the new meters, not the old meters. 842 
 843 
 Mr. Smith:  And would this validation code, for example, be able to say you couldn’t park at the 844 
pier? 845 
 846 
 Ms. Fellner:  You could make it specific to any different pay station or any of the new meters.   847 
 848 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, for example, if you are changing the linen at a beach house, you don’t need to 849 
be at the pier, you need to be in front of that beach house.   850 
 851 
 Ms. Fellner:  That’s correct.   852 
 853 
 Mr. Smith:  If you have a big condo, they have a big parking lot, so you don’t need to be parking 854 
out front.  On Saturdays, people are going and coming and there are a few hours in there where the 855 
parking lots are at least only half full and not fully full. 856 
 857 
 Ms. Fellner:  That’s correct. 858 
 859 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, and Mr. Mayor, I’d like to ask Mr. Stevens if he could share with us the 860 
information he has on Myrtle Beach annual passes and so forth. 861 
 862 
 Mayor Samples:  Mr. Stevens, would you care to share your information.  863 
 864 
 Mr. Stevens:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  I called up Lanier Parking, I called up their office.  Their 865 
rates, if you park on a parking meter on a street, for bi-weekly, weekly rate is $30, anywhere, any parking 866 
meter on a street in Myrtle Beach.  If you park at their garage, which we don’t have one, it’s $60 a month.  867 
They do not sell an annual pass in any way, shape, or form.  You either pay by the hour, by the day or by 868 
the week, or by the month if you’re at the parking garage.  Their daily rate, and this is off their website, if 869 
you park by the day, it’s $6 per day.  If you park there at the hourly rate, it ranges from a dollar to $1.50, 870 
depending on the location and demand.   871 
 872 
 Mayor Samples:  Is that it? 873 
 874 
 Mr. Stevens:  That’s it. 875 
 876 
 Mayor Samples:  Let me clarify something, cause I take exception to the; there are two classes of 877 
people that we’re talking about.  I have the business license people, they’re due a rough breakout in 878 
terms of the number of rentals down on the boulevard.  I think there’s about 900 of ‘em.  We’ve got 879 
probably 80-percent of those are covered by four, that’s how many you’d need, four companies, major 880 
companies.  The merchant validation, or whatever it’s called, is probably a good idea.  I would hate to get 881 
it to be so specific that it winds up taking the housekeeper, if you will, a lot of time connecting to that 882 
specific meter, if that’s where, in front of the particular condominium, because I think you may, we may 883 
stop getting any rentals in the Town of Surfside Beach.  You know what I’m saying? 884 
 885 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes, Mr. Mayor, I’m not interested in being that specific. 886 
 887 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you.  But the other piece, and I do support it, make no bones about it, I 888 
support selling annual passes to people that are nonresidents, but who live nearby, okay.  I believe that 889 
choice is the right thing to do, quite frankly.  I also believe that if we price it right that the town will benefit.  890 
People buy timeshares all the time, for example, because they’re buying a dream.  Many of those people 891 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 17 of 23 
 

don’t use those timeshares, but they’ve already purchased it.  So I think it would be; so I like the idea of 892 
selling the annual passes, because I don’t like the idea of ticketing them either.  Also if we sell ‘em out of 893 
town hall, annual passes out of town hall, I’m gonna speak plainly, I don’t think Lanier has, I don’t think 894 
there’s any reason why Lanier would even be involved.  I mean unless the contract, unless it’s an 895 
exclusive agreement, which I don’t remember any of that language in the contract, okay, don’t remember 896 
it being in the contract.  The town will collect an extra, we will avoid paying for Lanier, okay, to collect the 897 
funds, which I think is a plus for the town, to the tune of 6.5-percent.  Again, there’ll be fewer tickets 898 
issued, because they’ll have an annual pass and they’ll come back.  But that’s just my view.   899 
 900 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, a question for you.  We would sell these also to small businesses who 901 
were not maybe entitled to a validation code, they could buy these. 902 
 903 
 Mayor Samples:  Seems to me it’d be a logical alternative. 904 
 905 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay.  Mr. Mayor, to be honest with you, I’m not really in favor of it.  But I see the 906 
justification for it and so I’d like the administrator to work on some language for an ordinance, and some 907 
prices that could be presented to us in ordinance form that would say this is how much it would be and 908 
this is what you’ll be getting for annual passes, and also some language as to how we would do a 909 
validation code, and to find out if Lanier needs to be, their contract needs to be changed if we do annual 910 
passes, and so forth.  I think we need to stay on the right side of that contract. 911 
 912 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, I agree everything you said.  There is no exclusive agreement.  Council 913 
never offered an exclusive agreement, okay.  Let’s be clear, unless something was done…  Well, 914 
anyway, I agree with you a 100-percent.  I don’t want to see the town giving away 6.5-percent of the 915 
revenue just because somebody has a contract; there’s something different.  We don’t pay anything for 916 
the stickers that people use who live in the town.  There’s no benefit derived from that.  Anyway, so I 917 
wouldn’t be so concerned about that, Mr. Smith.   918 
 919 
 Mr. Stevens:  In the litigious society we’re in before I would do anything, I would prefer that we 920 
have the attorney look at the contract, that we make sure that we are stepping on solid ground, and not 921 
paper thin ground.  I certainly don’t want to crash down in a septic tank full of you know what, because we 922 
violated a contract.  We have been sued before, and we can be sued again.  So I think it’s in the best 923 
interest of the citizens of this town before we do anything, we have the attorney look at it. 924 
 925 
   Mayor Samples:  That goes without saying in a contract matter, and I would just like to say that 926 
we had attorneys reviewing everything we did in the past also…just as a point of information. 927 
 928 
 Ms. Herrmann:  Mr. Mayor, may we pause to change the tape? 929 
 930 
 Mayor Samples:  Yes, ma'am. 931 
 932 
 Ms. Herrmann:  Thank you. 933 
 934 
 Mayor Samples:  Just to remind you, because I know you weren’t serving at the time, we had 935 
lawyers reviewing everything we were doing then, also.   936 
 937 
 Mr. Johnson:  I would just like to point out that I concur with Councilmember Smith on directing 938 
the town administrator on those issues. 939 
 940 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you.  Alright…Ms. Mabry. 941 
 942 
 Ms. Mabry:  I just want to say that I concur with the passes, and I know that I can get up here and 943 
give a lot of facts and figures, because that’s just what I do, and that’s just who I am.  Any way council 944 
goes is fine, but you need to know what it’s costing you every step of the way, and I hope that I’ve pointed 945 
that out today.  I also wanted to say that the passes are usually a money maker for a town.  Many times 946 
you’ll get promotional where for $10 you get a little books and nobody ever redeems ‘em.  So that’s a big 947 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 18 of 23 
 

money maker for any business.  I think that if you sell passes enough, and we keep the price right, and 948 
we have a lot of them sold, people might come five times.  They might come three times.  They think 949 
they’re gonna every day; they never do, and it could be a real benefit to the town.  So it’s something we 950 
need to take very seriously and look into it at least.   951 
 952 
 Mr. Smith:  After Ms. Mabry’s comments, I would like for staff to give us some type of financial 953 
analysis as to if we sold these passes, what impact it might have on the revenue. 954 
 955 
 Mayor Samples:  Right.  Just anecdotally, and I agree with you, I think that’s a good thing to do.  956 
It came to me today, we did sell passes for $40 to nonresident property owners, and we sold a total of 957 
five.  We sold a total of five for a total of $200.  So we looked into how we marketed that, and we 958 
determined that there was no marketing done at all.  What I would say is that since this parking season, 959 
since the nonresident people have learned through the grapevine that they get free parking stickers, free 960 
parking stickers now.  We’ve had one person come in who’s a nonresident owner and you know how 961 
many stickers they got?  They got seven, cause they’ve got seven vehicles.  Okay, and what I’m saying is 962 
I’ve at that counter myself.  It’s been lined up; nonresident people.  People are smart. 963 
 964 
 Mr. Stevens:  Nonresident property owners or nonresidents? 965 
 966 
 Mayor Samples:  Nonresident property owners coming in, getting their free parking passes.  All 967 
I’m saying is last year, before when we had it and we didn’t market it, we didn’t collect much money.  We 968 
didn’t market it.  This year it’s free, and everybody knows they’re coming and getting ‘em, okay.  It’s a 969 
failure of marketing.  Business people know they have to market.  The government doesn’t do a very 970 
good job marketing.  I suggest that if we adopt an annual pass and we market it, that we’ll do very, very 971 
well, anecdotally.  Alright, what I would like to do, unless there are objections, to go back to 9.1 and let’s 972 
just run through.  I’m gonna start off by just hollering out the 9-1, anybody got a comment, bring it up.  I’d 973 
like to do this one time thoroughly.   974 
 975 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, before you get to that, I’d like to make a change to Article II down in the 976 
bottom where it says State Law References, because of the new golf cart law, I think we should reference 977 
Section 56-2-105, Golf Carts.  That refers to the new golf cart law about being able to drive four miles.   978 
 979 
 Mayor Samples:  Four miles from your gate.   980 
 981 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes.  At the bottom of the page add these words, SC Code 1976, Article 56-2-105, 982 
Golf Carts. 983 
 984 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you.  Definitions, anybody want to change any definitions?  I guess not, 985 
because it’s under state law.  Okay, 9-2, it says jurisdiction and municipal court.  I guess it, and the word 986 
is may, so we don’t need to change this particular section is my reading, but I’m no lawyer.  The bottom of 987 
the page it will say CD9:3, are you there?   988 
 989 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, do you think that we should reference our resolution that refers to the 990 
contract with Lanier in this section. 991 
 992 
 Mayor Samples:  No.   993 
 994 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay. 995 
 996 
 Mayor Samples:  No, I don’t think you should ever reference a contract in an ordinance.   997 
 998 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, okay. 999 
 1000 
 Mayor Samples:  Any other question; comments?   1001 
 1002 
 Mr. Johnson:  No. 1003 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 19 of 23 
 

 1004 
 Mayor Samples:  First let me say y’all have had time to read this, I hope.  Okay, thank you.  Next 1005 
is 9-3, 9-4, 9-5, 9-6, 9-7. 1006 
 1007 
 Ms. Dodge:  Mr. Mayor, I know I’ve made the statement in regard to intersections.  State law 1008 
doesn’t directly say intersection.  It calls it a stop light, or a stop sign.  But, anyway, that would mean an 1009 
intersection and it is 30 feet, according to the law.   1010 
 1011 
 Mayor Samples:  Where are you referring to? 1012 
 1013 
 Ms. Dodge:  Section 9-7, No parking places within 30 feet of an intersection.  I just wanted to 1014 
clarify that, because I did make a mistake twice. 1015 
 1016 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay.   1017 
 1018 
 Mr. Smith:  No changes. 1019 
 1020 
 Mayor Samples:  No changes?  Okay. 1021 
 1022 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Are you up to … 1023 
 1024 
 Mayor Samples:  Just through 9-7.  Okay, everybody good?  Definitions, 9-8. 1025 
 1026 
 Mr. Smith:  We’ve got some changes there. 1027 
 1028 
 Mayor Samples:  Yep, we do, don’t we.  Would you care to suggest some. 1029 
 1030 
 Mr. Smith:  I’ll be glad to suggest mine.   1031 
 1032 
 Mayor Samples:  Excellent. 1033 
 1034 
 Mr. Smith:  Under parking meter, it means a mechanical, add the words or electronic, device. 1035 
 1036 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 1037 
 1038 
 Mr. Smith:  And down at the last line in that paragraph where it says persons depositing a coin or 1039 
electronic payment. 1040 
 1041 
 Mayor Samples:  That shows up a couple of places, I think. 1042 
 1043 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s right.  And under the pay station, requires a monetary or electronic payment, 1044 
add the words or electronic. 1045 
 1046 
 Mayor Samples:  Everybody agree? 1047 
 1048 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Yes. 1049 
 1050 
 Mr. Smith:  And in the next paragraph it says pay station area.  In the second line it says payment 1051 
of US money or electronic payment, and in the fourth line down, mechanical or electronic pay station 1052 
device. 1053 
 1054 
 Mayor Samples:  Very good.  Any other changes?  Definitions.  Anybody want to change the 1055 
charges?  Okay, that’s 9-9.  Section 9-10, method of using; failure to deposit coins or pay at pay station.   1056 
 1057 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, after the word coins add electronic payments, or an electronic payment.  1058 
You want me to continue? 1059 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 20 of 23 
 

 1060 
 Mayor Samples:  Yeah, I do. 1061 
 1062 
 Mr. Smith:  Okay, in paragraph (a) in the second line it says United States or make electronic 1063 
payments; then in the fourth line, the sentence that says deposit of a coin or electronic payment.  In 1064 
paragraph (b) the third line whether it be by cash, or by bank, or by credit card, or electronic payment.  In 1065 
paragraph (c) without … 1066 
 1067 
 Mayor Samples:  May I stop you, a question I have in the same area.  They get a parking voucher 1068 
receipt and they’re supposed to leave it on their dashboard.   1069 
 1070 
 Mr. Smith:  For a pay station? 1071 
 1072 
 Mayor Samples:  Yep.  Where would they leave it for a golf cart?   1073 
 1074 
 Mr. Smith:  The steering wheel. 1075 
 1076 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 1077 
 1078 
 Mr. Smith:  Should we add that?   1079 
 1080 
 Mayor Samples:  I don’t know.  Dashboard is probably good enough.  Alright.   1081 
 1082 
 Mr. Smith:  Paragraph (c) last line, installed without depositing a coin or making an electronic 1083 
payment.   1084 
 1085 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay.  You want to take this; carry us on. 1086 
 1087 
 Mr. Smith:  That’s it for that section. 1088 
 1089 
 Mayor Samples:  Section 9-11; 9-12, Overtime parking.  I’m not sure I know what that really 1090 
means.  Do we allow parking overnight, Micki? 1091 
 1092 
 Chief Keziah:  There is an ordinance where you cannot park overnight in a beach access, after 1093 
seven. 1094 
 1095 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay, that’s my question. 1096 
 1097 
 Chief Keziah:  After the meters are, after they quit checking the meters, then they can park there, 1098 
but they’re not allowed to park overnight. 1099 
 1100 
 Mayor Samples:  That’s just for pay stations?   1101 
 1102 
 Chief Keziah:  No, that’s any of the beach parking, or parking lots for the beach access. 1103 
 1104 
 Mayor Samples:  What about now where we have parking meters in front of the condominiums? 1105 
 1106 
 Chief Keziah:  I’ll have to look that up.   1107 
 1108 
 Mayor Samples:  Just a question that we need to clarify.   1109 
 1110 
 Chief Keziah:  There’s a specific ordinance for the beach accesses, but we’re talking about 1111 
parking. 1112 
 1113 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 21 of 23 
 

 Ms. Kohlmann:  I think he’s right, it’s just strictly for the beach accesses, like Melody Lane.  The 1114 
park, wherever you can park a car up against where you can cross over the beach, it’s illegal to stay 1115 
overnight.   1116 
 1117 
 Unknown Speaker:  In the parking lots. 1118 
 1119 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Yeah, there wouldn’t ever be an ordinance for parking overnight on Ocean 1120 
Boulevard.  That’s why we have meters now, but there is no regulation right now stated in the books that I 1121 
could find, like you said, but you cannot park overnight.  So, at seven o’clock at night you could, if you’re 1122 
renting a house down there or you want to do whatever you wanna do, you legally can park your cars at 1123 
the meter at seven at night and leave it there till seven in the morning without paying to park it. 1124 
 1125 
 Chief Keziah:  You’ve just can’t do it at a beach access. 1126 
 1127 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Absolutely.   1128 
 1129 
 Mayor Samples:  Very good.  Section 9-13; 9-14; 9-15; 9-17, Penalties.  Is Lanier an authorized 1130 
code enforcement official. 1131 
 1132 
 Unknown speaker:  Yes. 1133 
 1134 
 Mayor Samples:  They are? 1135 
 1136 
 Ms. Fellner:  They are according to the resolution that Town Council passed. 1137 
 1138 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay.  They are gonna notify, they’re gonna provide written notice after 30 days 1139 
of issuance of a parking ticket if it hasn’t been paid? 1140 
 1141 
 Ms. Fellner:  They will handle everything with the debt setoff, yes, sir.   1142 
 1143 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay, the ordinance says that we’ll provide written notice in (j) the end of the 1144 
ordinance, a written notice shall be sent to the registered owner of the vehicle after 30 days of issuance of 1145 
the parking ticket if it has not been paid.  So they’re gonna do that. 1146 
 1147 
 Ms. Fellner:  Yes, sir. 1148 
 1149 
 Mayor Samples:  Okay. 1150 
 1151 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, 9-17, paragraph (h) the last line, public safety department should be 1152 
changed to police department.   1153 
 1154 
 Mayor Samples:  Paragraph (h) towing, huh?  Very good.  Any other changes?   1155 
 1156 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I have a question.  Micki, I’m sorry, when Lanier issues a summons, does it go to 1157 
our town’s municipal court? 1158 
 1159 
 Ms. Fellner:  No. 1160 
 1161 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  It says here under line (d) violators shall appear and be subject to the jurisdiction 1162 
of the town’s municipal court. 1163 
 1164 
 Mayor Samples:  Absolutely.   1165 
 1166 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  So we need to change that to where they go. 1167 
 1168 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 22 of 23 
 

 Ms. Herrmann:  Mr. Mayor, the resolution that the Council adopted specifically states that town 1169 
has no jurisdiction over tickets issued by Lanier.  However, our police department also issues tickets and 1170 
this would apply to the tickets issued by our police department.   1171 
 1172 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Then we need to have different wording in there. 1173 
 1174 
 Mayor Samples:  Yeah, I agree with you. 1175 
 1176 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  The verbiage is off, cause if you take it out… 1177 
 1178 
 Mayor Samples:  You need to clarify it.  Let’s make the distinction, and I would say that also 1179 
applies to (e) violators shall have a right to a jury trail upon proper request.   1180 
 1181 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Is the administrator gonna do the words on that, or do we need to do it? 1182 
 1183 
 Mayor Samples:  I have confidence in the administrator. 1184 
 1185 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  I was just clarifying it so that we didn’t come back and not finish it. 1186 
 1187 
 Mayor Samples:  Any other comments?  Good thing you got back, Rodney.  Alright, is it the 1188 
desire, what is the desire of Council to have an ordinance drafted, a revision drafted? 1189 
 1190 
 Mr. Smith:  Yes. 1191 
 1192 
 Ms. Dodge:  Yes. 1193 
 1194 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Yes.   1195 
 1196 
 Mayor Samples:  Thank you.  Okay. 1197 
 1198 
 Mr. Smith:  Mr. Mayor, do we need to go into regular session and have a consensus or a vote? 1199 
 1200 
 Mayor Samples:  Please, yep, need a motion to return to regular session. 1201 
 1202 
  Mr. Smith moved to reconvene regular session.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  1203 
MOTION CARRIED. 1204 
 1205 
 Mr. Smith moved to direct the town administrator to revise the ordinance on parking decals and 1206 
motor vehicles and traffic as mentioned in this discussion tonight.  Ms. Dodge seconded.   1207 
 1208 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Mr. Mayor, I just wanted to make sure that the part with the selling of the stickers 1209 
outside, are we gonna wait on that, or is it gonna be included in that.   1210 
 1211 
 Mayor Samples:  It’s gonna be included. 1212 
 1213 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  We didn’t come up with a conclusion on the fees or any of that stuff, so how do 1214 
we do that? 1215 
 1216 
 Mayor Samples:  Well, again remember, we go first reading, second reading, and so nothing is 1217 
concrete until you adopt it and it becomes concrete and then … 1218 
 1219 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  Alright, I just wanted to clarify that. 1220 
 1221 
 Mayor Samples:  …you gotta come back and clarify what it was when it was concrete, if you get 1222 
my drift.  So again, I don’t mind making the point.  I would like to see it in there.  At least I’d like to see 1223 
council discuss it, because, well, for the reasons we discussed earlier, okay. 1224 



Town Council Special Meeting  
April 1, 2013 
 

Page 23 of 23 
 

 1225 
 Mr. Johnson:  Yes. 1226 
 1227 
 All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 1228 
 1229 
 Mayor Samples:  I guess you have your direction.  The last item is we need to go into executive 1230 
session pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, Section 30-4-70-(a)(1). 1231 
 1232 
 4.  EXECUTIVE SESSION

 1236 

  Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, 1233 
appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release of an employee, or the 1234 
appointment of a person to a public body. 1235 

 Mr. Smith moved to enter executive session at 8:07 p.m.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in 1237 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 1238 
 1239 
 Mr. Smith moved to reconvene regular session at 8:53 p.m. Mr. Stevens seconded.  All voted in 1240 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 1241 
 1242 
 Mayor Samples:  No action was taken during executive session. 1243 
 1244 
 Ms. Kohlmann moved to authorize the town administrator to appoint Rodney Keziah chief of 1245 
police.  Mr. Stevens seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  1246 
  1247 
 5.  ADJOURNMENT.
 1249 

   1248 

 Mr. Smith moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:54 pm.  Ms. Dodge seconded.  All voted in favor.  1250 
MOTION CARRIED. 1251 
 1252 
      Respectfully submitted, 1253 
 1254 
      _____________________________________________  1255 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 1256 
 1257 
Approved:    April 23, 2013 1258 
 1259 

____________________________________ 1260 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 1261 

         1262 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 1263 
Mary M. Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore   Ann Dodge, Town Council 1264 
 1265 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 1266 
Mark L Johnson, Town Council    Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 1267 
 1268 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 1269 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council      Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 1270 
 1271 
Clerk’s Note:  This document constitutes minutes of the meeting, which was audio taped. In accordance 1272 
with FOIA, meeting notice and the agenda were distributed to local media and interested parties.  The 1273 
agenda was posted on bulletin boards outside Council Chambers and in the Town Hall reception area.  1274 
Meeting notice was also posted on the Town marquee.  When (**) is used, a section of the transcription is 1275 
inaudible.  Public Comments are verbatim.  Council Comments are mostly verbatim, with the exception of 1276 
aside comments, i.e. interjections, partial words, redundant words, requests for the floor, and 1277 
acknowledgement of speakers.   1278 



 

Page 1 of 18 
 

  SURFSIDE BEACH TOWN COUNCIL  1 
  REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES  2 
  APRIL 9, 2013 6:30 P.M. 3 
         TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER.

 14 

  Mayor Samples called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Mayor Samples, 10 
Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry, and Councilmembers Dodge, Johnson, Kohlmann, Smith, and Stevens were 11 
in attendance.  A quorum was present.  Others present:  Town Administrator Fellner; Planning Director 12 
Morris; Police Chief Keziah; Fire Chief Cimini, and Town Clerk Herrmann.    13 

 2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

 17 

  Pastor Tom Wallace was unable to attend.  15 
Mr. Johnson gave the invocation.  Mayor Samples led the Pledge of Allegiance. 16 

 3.  AGENDA APPROVAL.

 20 

    Mr. Smith moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Ms. Dodge 18 
seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 19 

 4.  MINUTES APPROVAL.
 22 

   21 

 Mr. Johnson moved to approve the March 25, 2013 special meeting minutes as presented.  Ms. 23 
Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 24 
 25 
 Mr. Johnson moved to approve the March 25, 2013 regular meeting minutes as presented.  Ms. 26 
Mabry seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 27 
 28 
 5.  PUBLIC COMMENTS – AGENDA ITEMS.
 30 

  No comments were made. 29 

 6.  
 32 

COMMUNICATIONS. 31 

 A.  Department Reports 33 
 34 
 i.  Planning, Building, & Zoning.
 36 

   35 

 Ms. Morris presented the written report, a copy of which is on file.  The department issued 109 37 
permits during March compared to 101 in 2012; 147 inspections were completed; 15 plan reviews were 38 
performed and 34 business licenses were issued.  The Waffle House representative picked up the permit 39 
to begin construction.  It will be located on Highway 17 North next door to Dagwood’s Deli.  The Board of 40 
Zoning Appeals denied the request by Tomlinson’s to allow them to keep the parking lot as it without 41 
meeting the overlay landscaping requirements.  Tomlinson’s has 30 days during which to appeal to circuit 42 
court.  The owner of the two properties located on 15th Avenue South obtained demolition permits and the 43 
structures were removed. 44 
 45 
 Mr. Smith thanked Ms. Morris for helping to get the River City Café sign replaced, and noted that 46 
in her report it should state Dagwood’s Deli, not Dogwood’s Deli. 47 
 48 
 Ms. Dodge, holding up a newspaper, asked if anything could be done to stop unsolicited papers 49 
being left all over town every week.  They are even thrown onto vacant properties.  Ms. Morris said that 50 
was being addressed as others had already called her about them.  The service was asked to only leave 51 
them where there is a proper receptacle; it’s a slow process.  Ms. Dodge thanked Ms. Morris for the 52 
efforts to clean up 15th Avenue South.  Mr. and Mrs. Goddard who are neighbors to the property will be 53 
thrilled to see it cleaned up. 54 
 55 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 2 of 18 
 

 Mayor Samples said the newspapers are a nuisance, and that he personally called The Sun 56 
News and its parent company, Knight-Ridder, many months ago.  He suggested that staff contact the 57 
town attorney to see if there was some type legal action the town could take, because there is a contract 58 
in place for the distribution of those papers.  He asked Ms. Morris to report back to council.   59 
 60 
 ii.  Police.
 62 

   61 

 Chief Keziah said he received a complaint today about unsolicited newspapers.  He called, but 63 
had not yet received a reply to the message he left.  Chief Keziah presented the written report, a copy of 64 
which is on file.  There has been a 4-percent increase in calls for service during this month; 801 to 836.  65 
Arrests have decreased 3-percent, 178 to 172, compared to March 2012.  Nicole Solorzano has 66 
completed the 6th week at Criminal Justice Academy.  She is ranked at the very top of her class.  She was 67 
named “assistant class leader” by her peers, which is a very big honor, and is an example of the quality of 68 
personnel Surfside Beach sends to academy.  The department and town are very proud of her 69 
representation and look forward to having her serve.  The promotional process for ranks of corporal and 70 
sergeant are completed and a list of candidates is done.  The process for lieutenant is also underway, 71 
and should be completed by May 1.  Staff performed on-line training required by the SC Criminal Justice 72 
Academy to receive mandated in-service hours.  There was one use of force incident during March 73 
involving a burglary incident.  There was one vehicle pursuit during March involved a vehicle travelling the 74 
wrong way down Highway 17 at night.  The driver was intoxicated.  The tire deflation device was used 75 
and worked perfectly to end the pursuit.  The department hosted a Controlled Force Instructor Class on 76 
March 11 through 14.   By hosting the class, the town received $895 worth of training free for officers.  77 
Another class will be hosted in November.  All officers, including beach patrol, will attend a 4-hour 78 
CPR/First Aid training class by the end of April.  Sergeant Bailey’s participation in the US Marshalls Task 79 
Force assisted the department in clearing 18 outstanding warrants, and collected $9,725 in bonds and 80 
fines.  Surfside Beach Police Officers wrote 63 warnings in lieu of Uniform Traffic Tickets or to record 81 
vehicles stopped for non-traffic related reasons that are not reflected in the database total.  Chief Keziah 82 
thanked the town for allowing him to attend the FBI National Academy training in Quantico, Virginia.  He 83 
graduated from the 10-week course on March 22nd.  Instruction included leadership in law enforcement, 84 
forensic science overview for police managers and administration, labor law issues, forensic analysis of 85 
written statements, media issue for police administrators, and two hours of physical training four days a 86 
week, all of which will enable him to serve the town more effectively.  The Citizens Police Academy is 87 
scheduled to begin July 12 and end August 15.  The class will meet on Thursday nights from 7:00 to 9:00, 88 
and is open to town residents, property owners, and any citizen who works at a business in the town.  89 
Participants will be selected after completion of background checks and review by a selection committee.  90 
Two suspects were arrested on March 26 during the commission of a night-time burglary of a residence 91 
on Ocean Boulevard.  They were later identified and charged for the commission of an armed robbery at 92 
a bank in the Murrells Inlet/Pawleys Island area.  The arrest cleared numerous open cases in the 93 
department, and some open cases in Horry and Georgetown counties.  The officers involved were 94 
commended.  A citizen sent a very nice card to thank Corporal Ziolkowski, and Officers Brode and Hoffer 95 
for the manner in which they responded to a burglary call at her residence.  She said they were 96 
“courteous, well-informed, and very professional.”  The department always appreciates letters and cards 97 
like this on as they confirm the level of service and professionalism to which they strive to provide.    98 
 99 
 Mr. Smith asked how many people could take the first Citizens Academy class.  Chief Keziah said 100 
the first class would be limited to between 10 and 15; future classes may have more participants 101 
depending on feedback and adjustments to the program.  He would like to have larger groups participate.  102 
Mr. Smith said drivers going the wrong way on Highway 17 has happened in the past, and asked Chief 103 
Keziah to think of solutions that might help a drunk driver recognize that he’s going the wrong way.  He 104 
suggested that Chief take some time to think about it and report back to council.  The road is going to be 105 
paved sometime before the end of the year, and he believed it would be beneficial to include additional 106 
signage or arrows on the road.  Chief Keziah said it is a very common occurrence and solutions would 107 
take some thought.  He said a lot of times it is not a drunk driver; it’s just people who are not aware when 108 
they turn off the frontage road that that is not the right direction.   109 
 110 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 3 of 18 
 

 Ms. Dodge said one-way traffic was instituted on Seaside Drive, and asked if there had been any 111 
problems with people accessing Seaside Drive.  Chief Keziah said there are not any issues that he’s 112 
aware of.  He inspected the area and found that the road is marked very well, especially with the arrows 113 
on the pavement.   114 
 115 
 Ms. Kohlmann congratulated Chief Keziah on the FBI graduation.  It’s a wonderful thing, and she 116 
said they were happy that he was here and she looked forward to all the great programs he’s coming up 117 
with.   118 
 119 
 Mr. Stevens welcomed Chief Keziah and said he’s glad that he is the one they picked, and also 120 
wanted to ask him when the Crime Watch program might get started.  Chief Keziah said that was in the 121 
works now; as soon as the lieutenant promotional process is completed May 1st that will be one of the 122 
lieutenant’s duties. 123 
 124 
   iii.  Fire.
 126 

   125 

 Chief Cimini presented the written report, which is on file.  He noted that the Midway Fire 127 
Department (Pawleys Island) ladder was damaged at a 3-alarm building fire and the town’s crew and 128 
volunteers were able to arrive and set up in record time to help douse that fire.  The Midway fire chief said 129 
our crew did a great job.  That is a good testament to our volunteers as the incident was at 3 o’clock in 130 
the morning.  The town crew and volunteers also supported Horry County during the recent Carolina 131 
Forest fires.  During the month of March, fire prevention activities included 15 inspections; 9 pending re-132 
inspections; 3 public education events; 3 plan reviews, and 6 new pre-fire plans, totaling 36 fire 133 
prevention activities.  Volunteer and career personnel dedicated 178.3 hours training and 265.45 hours 134 
responding to calls during March.  Career crews are now receiving 18-hours additional training each 135 
month through the SC Fire Academy and the Horry County Fire Rescue online system. Captain Prentice 136 
is conducting CPR classes for the police department.  The working relationship with the police 137 
department is fantastic; they are a great group of people.  The volunteer rank was increased by two 138 
members and there are five new volunteer applications.  A mentor program was started this past month 139 
that matches new volunteers with experienced people to give them a better insight into the how and why 140 
of firefighting.  The assessment center will take place for the vacant career position on April 17th, with 141 
written and practical applications at the Myrtle Beach training center.  On the 18th a 5-member panel, 142 
including Captain Miller from the town’s police department and three outside fire chiefs will conduct 143 
interviews, followed by an agility test.  On the morning of the 19th, the top three candidates will 144 
interviewed by the town administrator and himself.  Three of the five successful candidates are currently 145 
volunteers for the town.  There were 22 applicants that tested for the position.  Chief Cimini said it was a 146 
pleasure serving as the fire chief.  He was very proud of the personnel, the volunteers, and the crew who 147 
are all testament to the 49 years the department has existed.  Chief Cimini reminded everyone, including 148 
councilmembers, that the department has free smoke detectors which they will gladly install, just contact 149 
the department. 150 
 151 
 Mayor Samples asked if it was the condo fire in Litchfield.  Chief Cimini said it was the James 152 
Smith Realty office building.    Mayor Samples said it was a long way to go for a fire, and said that was a 153 
different issue.   154 
 155 
 Ms. Dodge thanked Chief Cimini saying he’s done an excellent and spectacular job, and she 156 
appreciated it.  In her book, he’s the quiet man who gets it done.  Chief Cimini said thank you. 157 
 158 
 Mr. Johnson also thanked Chief Cimini. 159 
 160 
 C.  Administrator’s Report – Update on Current Events.
 162 

   161 

 Ms. Fellner reported that public works continues to work on delineation of the parking spaces 163 
along Ocean Boulevard and Seaside Drive.  Some councilmembers and residents had asked about the 164 
progress.  They were still placing some of the wood as late as yesterday afternoon.  Mr. Adair has plans 165 
for additional signage on Seaside for no parking as people are trying to crowd the other side of the street, 166 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 4 of 18 
 

because they do not want to park at the meters.  The engineer met with staff on site today to discuss a 167 
required change to the gate on the pier, the Kiwi shades, and the finalization of the additional parking 168 
space plan.  Staff will continue to work diligently to move the project forward.  The contractor is being 169 
called every day to make sure it is completed timely.  The contractor lost a few days due to rain, and the 170 
gate change will add a few days.  It will probably be an additional five days in total to complete the 171 
project.  The original completion date was Friday, April 12th.  The contractor will be asked to work on 172 
Saturday.   173 
 174 
 Mayor Samples asked if there is a retention provision on that construction contract.  Ms. Fellner 175 
said yes, she believed it was 7-percent. 176 
 177 
 Ms. Fellner informed council that six bids were received for the Huckabee ADA (Americans with 178 
Disabilities Act) bathroom update project that ranged from $29,500 to $11,244.  After reviewing the 179 
specifications, the lowest bid was determined to be responsive and the bid award will go to the low 180 
bidder, L&J Construction.   181 
 182 
 Mr. Johnson asked if L&J was a local company.  Ms. Fellner said they are located in Conway. 183 
 184 
 Ms. Dodge asked how much the bid was.  Ms. Fellner said $11,244; a list of all the bids was 185 
distributed on the dais prior to the meeting.  Ms. Dodge found it and said she had covered it up with her 186 
things. 187 
 188 
 Mayor Samples said the administrator and he had discussed the need for a special meeting next 189 
week, and asked Ms. Fellner to explain.  Ms. Fellner said an ordinance will be presented during this 190 
meeting to correct one paragraph in the decals and exemption ordinance so that the town is not issuing 191 
an untoward number of decals to nonresident property owners, who would get one decal free and a 192 
second reading on that to make it law.  Code requires seven days between first and second readings.  It 193 
would behoove the town to have a special meeting for that purpose.  It would be a short meeting.  The 194 
suggested day and time is April 17th at 10:00 a.m., and that would be the only agenda item.  After further 195 
discussion, it was decided to meet on Wednesday, April 17th at 6:30 p.m. at the fire station.    196 
 197 
 7.  BUSINESS.
 199 

   198 

 A.  Second Reading Ordinance #13-0739 to repeal GTE Franchise, expired 10/2007. 200 
 201 
 Mr. Smith moved to adopt second reading of Ordinance #13-0739.  Mr. Stevens seconded.  All 202 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said that the franchise agreement is repealed. 203 
 204 
 B.  First Reading Ordinance #13-0742 to add §17-905(d) and §17-914 Time for Completion 205 
of Overlay Requirements. 206 
 207 
 Ms. Morris presented the consideration paper that is on file and said that Town Council approved 208 
the design overlay district in January 2013.  Since that time staff has enforced the ordinance.  Generally, 209 
design overlay district requirements are completed prior to a business opening.  However, Town Council 210 
may certainly establish a time line to allow a business to open, but set a deadline during which the 211 
business must meet the overlay requirements.  The proposed ordinance was recommended by the town 212 
attorney.  There was a public hearing on this matter, and the Planning Commission recommended the 213 
changes by unanimous vote.  There is a correction to the last line in paragraph (d):  the word “used” 214 
should be “issued.”  At Town Council’s request, the penalties for violations will be added in Section 17-215 
914 upon adoption.  The penalty language is exactly the same as penalties in the other sections of the 216 
zoning code.  Packages are distributed to those who inquire about the overlay requirements, and adding 217 
this section would inform the public about penalties when requirements are not met.      218 
 219 
 Mr. Johnson moved to adopt first reading of Ordinance 13-0742 as amended.  Ms. Dodge 220 
seconded.   221 
 222 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 5 of 18 
 

 Ms. Kohlmann said the background section states that Town Council can establish a timeline in 223 
order to allow the business owner to open, while making the required improvements, and asked if that 224 
wording should be included in the ordinance.  She understood there was a 60-day time to allow 225 
compliance, but it did not actually state the business could open for business, and she believed that was 226 
council’s intent.  Ms. Morris said the town attorney provided the wording.  When a zoning permit is issued, 227 
it will state the business can open and that 60-days is allowed during which to complete the requirements.  228 
Ms.  Kohlmann asked again if it should be part of the ordinance, reiterating that was her only question. 229 
 230 
 Mayor Samples said it was reviewed by legal counsel.   231 
 232 
 Mr. Stevens asked if a business license could be obtained at the same time.  Ms. Morris said yes, 233 
but she had no problem adding the language suggested by Ms. Kohlmann.   234 
 235 
 Mr. Smith thought those words should be added to make it very clear that the intent is for the 236 
business to be able to open, just as Ms. Morris stated in the consideration paper.   237 
 238 
 Mayor Samples asked where the words would be inserted.  Ms. Morris said the change would be 239 
sent to the attorney for review and suggested adding after …shall have 60 days from the date of 240 
opening… instead of …60 days from the date of approval…  241 
 242 
 Ms. Kohlmann asked if “however, may open for business during that time” could be added after 243 
…comply with the overlay requirements…  She said either way was acceptable. 244 
 245 
 Mayor Samples asked if the planning commission and parking committee reviewed the 246 
ordinance.  Ms. Morris said the planning commission reviewed it twice, and the wording was approved by 247 
the commission and had legal counsel’s review.  The parking committee was involved with Ordinance 248 
#13-0743, not this one.     Mayor Samples asked her to make sure legal review was done after the 249 
change.  Ms. Morris said absolutely.   250 
 251 
 Mr. Smith asked what words would be added and where they would be placed.  Ms. Morris said it 252 
would be sent to the town attorney to add the language based on the comments, and it would be 253 
presented to council.   254 
 255 
 Mr. Stevens asked if the words opening and receive a business license should be used.  Ms. 256 
Morris said the zoning ordinance has nothing to do with the issuance of a business license.   257 
 258 
 Mr. Smith said the background information says the council can establish a timeline in order to 259 
allow the business owner to open, and the intent is to allow them to open and give them 60 days to do the 260 
overlay.  Whatever proper words say that, just like presented in the background information was what 261 
they were looking for.  Ms. Morris said she could get that done.  262 
 263 
 All voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said first reading is adopted as 264 
amended. 265 
 266 
 C.  First Reading Ordinance #13-0743 to amend §17-395 and §17-420 Parking 267 
Requirements in C-3 Zoning District. 268 
 269 
 Ms. Morris said the current requirements in the C-3 District, which is the business area located at 270 
the pier, actually stifles businesses and give no room for growth or redevelopment.  Currently, even on a 271 
very small parcel, a 3,000 square foot retail store requires approximately 60 parking spaces.  If something 272 
should happen to those businesses, they could not be rebuilt based on the current code.  Several months 273 
ago, council was asked to consider waiving the parking requirements completely for the C-3 District, but 274 
council did not agree with waiving it and instead asked that the matter be reconsidered with input from the 275 
parking committee and planning commission.  Staff worked with the parking committee, whose members 276 
were very helpful with the new proposal that is presented tonight.  The recommendation basically states 277 
that a building that is to be torn down or to be renovated at 50-percent of the value or more has to be 278 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 6 of 18 
 

elevated based on FEMA flood elevation requirements and therefore, parking could be located 279 
underneath the building.  Staff presented a sketch to the parking committee and to the planning 280 
commission showing that each lot on Ocean Boulevard from Eagles to Neal & Pam’s (Surfside Drive to 281 
1st Avenue South) are all the exact same size.  Generally, those businesses currently have between ten 282 
and 15 parking spaces.  Allowing for an elevator; piers and pilings, and storage areas staff calculated that 283 
they could probably get 24 parking spaces underneath elevated buildings.  The planning commission 284 
recommended a change in the wording to state the number of spaces shall be at least 80-percent of the 285 
potential spaces for each parcel or business, which would allow room for elevators, storage, and pilings.  286 
Any lots containing parking areas for existing businesses relinquish the right to develop the area devoted 287 
to parking, unless and until such time parking is provided elsewhere by the business or property owners 288 
meeting the requirements of this chapter.  Basically, if there is a vacant parcel being used for parking, it 289 
must continue to be used for parking, unless and until parking is provided in some other location.  That 290 
stipulation is already in the ordinance in a different section, but was added here for clarification.  The 291 
parking committee and the planning commission recommended approving the ordinance unanimously.  A 292 
public hearing was held on the ordinance before the planning commission, and the ordinance is 293 
presented for first reading. 294 
 295 
 Mr. Smith was not sure he understood the 80-percent of potential spaces theory.   296 
 297 
 Mr. Johnson said point of order; a motion was needed prior to discussion. 298 
 299 
 Mr. Smith moved to suspend the rules.  Mr. Johnson seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION 300 
CARRIED. 301 
 302 
 Mr. Smith said the proposal is for 80-percent of potential spaces, but if a building was rebuilt it 303 
would have to have 60 spaces.  Ms. Morris said that was correct under the current ordinance and that 304 
was the reasoning behind the proposed changed.  The new proposal eliminates the 60 space 305 
requirement.  Mr. Smith asked if it would be 80-percent of 60.  Ms. Morris said it would be 80-percent of 306 
the number of spaces the parcel is capable of holding.  The parcels in that district are generally 100- x 60-307 
feet, with the setback requirements of 20-foot on the front, 5-feet on each side, and 15-feet at the rear.  308 
Parking is allowed in the setback, although staff would prefer those areas to have landscaping.  Mr. Smith 309 
asked if that was required.  Ms. Morris said no, parcel landscaping is required, but nothing like the 310 
overlay.  With those calculations using a 9- x 18-foot parking space, each lot could hold approximately 24 311 
parking spaces.  Considering piers, pilings, and the potential for an elevator, instead of requiring 100-312 
percent of the parking that can fit on the parcel, the recommendation is to require 80-percent.  For 313 
example, Eagles currently has ten parking spaces.  This would prevent them from elevating a new, 314 
possibly larger building and just putting ten spaces back.  Using 80-percent of the potential parking 315 
spaces would require them to increase the number of spaces.  Every parcel would gain additional parking 316 
spaces using the 80-percent requirement, and that is what the parking committee was trying to 317 
accomplish.   318 
 319 
 Mr. Stevens wanted to be clear, because it was confusing to him.  A building has to do 50-percent 320 
renovations before elevating.  Ms. Morris said that was right.  Mr. Stevens previously inspected the 321 
Eagles property, because he was curious about how it worked.  The building is 86 x 22, and he figured 322 
about 2,000 interior square feet.  If he decided to open a new restaurant business, but was not doing 50-323 
percent renovations, according to current code if he had an 800-square foot kitchen and a 1,200 foot 324 
dining area, he would need 20 spaces.  If he was required to have 80-percent, he would need 16 spaces.  325 
He had seen the presentation at the planning commission meeting.  He said Eagles only has 10 spaces, 326 
but his new business would need 16 spaces.  Ms. Morris said that was correct, but the ordinance 327 
provides for existing businesses that cannot meet the parking by stating “if possible.”  There are several 328 
businesses, particularly on Highway 17, that there is no way to bring them up to current standards.  The 329 
town cannot prevent a business from opening because they do not meet the current standards, especially 330 
for an existing building.  Mr. Stevens said he was still a little confused and believed a workshop was 331 
needed.  Ms. Morris offered to show council the same PowerPoint shown to the planning commission.   332 
 333 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 7 of 18 
 

 Mayor Samples said the first time he read the ordinance it was confusing to him, because he 334 
knows there are places where 80-percent is used in residential lots, i.e., if you don’t meet the minimum lot 335 
size of 9,000 for example in R-1, but 80-percent can be used to build.  He believed the important element 336 
in this was that the C-3 District, the very small amusement commercial district down by the pier, held old 337 
block buildings that were built many, many years ago.  Worst case, a hurricane destroys them.  They 338 
cannot be rebuilt as they currently exist, because the FEMA flood regulations require elevation in the 339 
flood zone.  He had no problem holding a workshop.  He was glad that the planning commission and the 340 
parking committee spent time reviewing the ordinance.  He suggested adding the item to the agenda for 341 
the 17th meeting so Ms. Morris could do the presentation.  He trusted the recommendation of the planning 342 
commission and parking committee who reviewed the ordinance.  Everyone knows that parking is a 343 
problem in that district, and those buildings will not be there forever, and they are not the highest and best 344 
use of the property.  If there was no great objection, he would like for council to adopt first reading; have 345 
the workshop, because committees of council appointees have worked on this.   346 
 347 
 Mr. Smith said the parking requirement with the new change is no longer associated with the 348 
business type; it’s only associated with the lot size.  Ms. Morris said that was correct.  Mr. Smith asked 349 
which type business had the “S” by them.  Ms. Morris said any business, restaurant, retail.  Mr. Smith 350 
objected to liquor sales and said the requirement for that type business should remain as it is.  Ms. Morris 351 
said yes, they are actually permitted in the district now it could remain as is.  Mr. Smith preferred that 352 
individual businesses be in that district and did not want the shopping center parking requirement to 353 
change.  He wanted to keep the ordinance, as the background says, retail and restaurants, because they 354 
complement each other.  Ms. Morris said that was the goal, to make sure it was the restaurants and the 355 
retail stores.  She had no problem changing everything else.  Mr. Smith also did not want billiard parlors 356 
to have relaxed parking requirements.  Ms. Morris said she would take care of that.  Mr. Smith said that 357 
was pretty much his questions and he like the idea of a workshop to view the presentation.  He said 358 
henceforth he believed he would attend the planning commission meetings and not participate; sit in the 359 
back row with a frown on his face (laughter).   360 
 361 
 Mayor Samples said that would be perfectly acceptable, and told Mr. Smith to just not move his 362 
head.  He asked if there was any disagreement with Mr. Smith’s suggestion. 363 
 364 
 Mr. Johnson asked if a business had one or two pool tables if that was considered a billiard 365 
parlor.  Mr. Smith said in his point of view, one table is not a billiard parlor.  A billiard parlor is where your 366 
main function is to have pool tables.  Mayor Samples thanked him, and said that was clear.  There was 367 
no disagreement regarding the workshop. 368 
 369 
 Mr. Smith moved to reconvene regular session.  Ms. Kohlmann seconded.  All voted in favor.  370 
MOTION CARRIED. 371 
 372 
 Mr. Stevens moved to have a special meeting and a workshop on this on Wednesday, April 17th.  373 
Ms. Kohlmann said they are two different meetings.  Mayor Samples said the special meeting would 374 
include a workshop component on this ordinance, in addition to the business item Ms. Fellner needed to 375 
have addressed. 376 
 377 
 Mr. Johnson called point of order stating the issue on the table is Ordinance #13-0743.  Mayor 378 
Samples said it is, and called for motion. 379 
 380 
 Mr. Johnson moved to approve first reading of Ordinance 13-0743.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All 381 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED.  Mayor Samples said there would be a workshop at the special 382 
meeting to discuss the matter. 383 
  384 
 D.  First Reading Ordinance #13-0744, to amend §9-16 Decals and Exemptions, ¶(a) 385 
Resident and Nonresident Property Owner Parking Decals. 386 
 387 
 Ms. Fellner understood council’s intent to deal with this ordinance in its entirety at the next 388 
meeting, but this one small change is to prevent the issuance of extra free decals to nonresidents in the 389 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 8 of 18 
 

meantime, and hence, the special meeting scheduled next week.  She presented the proposed change, 390 
which was reviewed by the town attorney:   391 
 392 
 Section 9-16, paragraph (a) as it currently reads  393 
 394 

All persons residing or owning residential property within the corporate limits of the 395 
town shall be entitled to one free decal per vehicle, to be issued by the town, upon 396 
verification of current vehicle registration or verification of proof of residential property 397 
ownership.   398 

 399 
 Section 9-16, paragraph (a) requested change to read 400 
 401 

Persons residing within the corporate limits of the town shall be entitled to one 402 
free decal per vehicle to be issued by the town upon verification of current 403 
vehicle registration and verification of proof of residential property ownership.  404 
Nonresident residential property owners shall be entitled to only one free decal 405 
notwithstanding the number of vehicles owned upon verification of current vehicle 406 
registration and verification of proof of residential property ownership. 407 
 408 

 Ms. Kohlmann moved to suspend the rules.  Mr. Smith seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION 409 
CARRIED. 410 
 411 
 Ms. Kohlmann said it says persons residing within the corporate limits of the town shall be entitled 412 
to one free per vehicle to be issued by the town upon verification of current vehicle registration and 413 
verification of proof of residential property ownership.  She asked if that was intentionally done so that 414 
residents that rent cannot get a decal.  There are people that have rented for 50-years, but don’t own the 415 
house.  Mayor Samples said that was a good point.  Ms. Fellner agreed. 416 
 417 
 Mr. Smith suggested that the proposed paragraph be deleted and substitute the paragraph that 418 
he spoke of during the workshop.  Once regular order was reconvened, he was prepared to make 419 
motions and amendments to do that.  He believed the way it is proposed, as Ms. Kohlmann said, would 420 
keep renters from getting decals, and since it has to be amended, he suggested that council go ahead 421 
and amend it as he spoke of during the workshop.  Mayor Samples thanked Mr. Smith and said since that 422 
amendment would be offered, he asked Mr. Smith to refresh everyone’s memory before leaving 423 
discussion.   424 
 425 
 Mr. Smith suggested deleting paragraph (a) and replacing it with a paragraph that would say, as 426 
he spoke vehicles include the word golf carts so that all full time resident vehicles, including golf carts, all 427 
persons residing within the corporate limits can get one decal per vehicle upon verification that car is 428 
registered in the corporate limits.  For nonresidents, he noted the he was only reading highlights, non-429 
resident residential property owners would be entitled to one free decal.  If they want additional decals, 430 
they have to pay $40 for each additional decal.  This was part of the problem that the administrator was 431 
trying to correct by making this proposal.  Since paragraph (a) was being modified, he suggested moving 432 
forward to add the words about limited issued special parking decals that was spoken of like the ones 433 
used for the purchases of annual fishing passes, and also the paragraph that speaks about golf carts 434 
parking fee at the beach accesses except when prohibited.   435 
 436 
 Mr. Stevens moved to reconvene regular session.  Ms. Kohlmann seconded.  437 
 438 
 Mayor Samples said Town Council met a week ago and believed the sheet that Mr. Smith was 439 
reading from was the same one read from during that meeting.  Ms. Fellner said she had a copy of Mr. 440 
Smith’s sheet.  Mayor Samples said other members may be on board, but he did not recall it as clearly 441 
without having it in front of him.  Mr. Smith passed out copies of the recommended language.  Mayor 442 
Samples asked Mr. Steven’s to withdraw his motion so council would have time read the proposed 443 
language.  Mr. Steven withdrew the motion; Ms. Kohlmann withdrew the second.  Mayor Samples said 444 
council was still in suspended rules for discussion and asked Mr. Smith to present his proposal. 445 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 9 of 18 
 

 446 
 Mr. Smith said the purpose for paragraph (a) and the reason he was only talking about paragraph 447 
(a) is because the agenda only refers to paragraph (a.)  The agenda cannot be changed, so council may 448 
only deal with that part.  That paragraph refers to decals for residents and nonresidential property owners.  449 
He found that the best way to present it was to separate into two different paragraphs: one dealing with 450 
the residents, and other one dealing with the nonresidents, since the conditions would different for each.  451 
For full time residents there is basically no change.  If you’re a full time resident and you’ve got a vehicle, 452 
and it’s registered in South Carolina and in the corporate limits of the town you can get a decal for it.  You 453 
get a decal for your golf cart, or whatever kind of vehicle is registered in the corporate limits of the town.  454 
The nonresident residential property owners would get one free decal that can be for a vehicle like an 455 
automobile or a golf cart.  Staff just has to be told which vehicle it will be placed on and it would allow free 456 
parking.  A nonresident residential property owner that wants more than one decal will have to pay $40 457 
for additional decals.  This is just like it used to be for nonresident residential property owners.  This 458 
solves the problem that the administrator is concerned about, plus allows them to get additional decals for 459 
a fee of $40.   460 
 461 
 Mayor Samples said he was satisfied and appreciated his efforts.  This clearly cleans up the 462 
issue identifying residents and nonresident residential property owners.  There is another group of people 463 
that he knows some members have concern for that he would like to discuss at a later date, soon he 464 
hoped, and those are nonresidents who visit the town and live in the surrounding area.  For purposes of 465 
this meeting, he asked if there were any questions. 466 
 467 
 Ms. Fellner asked if the intention was that round decals to also be placed on golf carts.  Mr. Smith 468 
said yes; paragraph (b) cannot be changed at this meeting, because the agenda only refers to paragraph 469 
(a).  At the next opportunity, council would like to change paragraph (b), which will state that the 470 
registration decal is not a parking decal, just a registration.  If free parking is desired, you have to have a 471 
round decal.  Ms. Fellner said she was unclear about circle decals versus square decals.  Mr. Smith 472 
explained that the nonresident residential property owner was entitled to one decal, which could be 473 
placed on a golf cart if they wanted that free parking.  Ms. Fellner said the other changes would be 474 
presented to council at the next meeting, and all changes should be incorporated.  Mr. Smith said if it 475 
could be presented at the special meeting that would be great to have first reading on paragraph (b).  Ms. 476 
Fellner wanted to present the entire ordinance.   477 
 478 
 Mayor Sample said it gets more confusing the longer it is discussed.  It would be helpful if a flow 479 
chart were developed to show the customers and vehicles types. 480 
 481 
 Mr. Stevens believed that paragraph (a) was pretty clear.  Mayor Samples asked if he meant the 482 
subsections, too.  Mr. Smith said yes, all of the parts of paragraph (a). 483 
 484 
 Ms. Kohlmann said that basically council accepted this in December.  There is one sentence in 485 
(b) that has to be taken out.  She said this had been mentioned at three different times.  If the registration 486 
(b), which cannot be done at this meeting; it is very simple.  The line crosses out the parking stickers.  487 
The round symbol right there is the parking sticker.  The square sticker with rules on it is a registration 488 
sticker.  Registration means registration; parking sticker means parking.  It can’t get any simpler than that.  489 
What Mr. Smith is proposing tonight is what council spent hours on the other night at the workshop.  This 490 
is not new to anybody, and she didn’t remember anybody being opposed to it, so she was questioning 491 
why it’s even come up again.  She thought just one rule would have been done right away, if council had 492 
just amended it the first time. 493 
 494 
 Mayor Samples said the proposal introduced by Mr. Smith has significant changes, including a 495 
fee of $40 for additional decals.   496 
 497 
 Ms. Kohlmann said that was done at the workshop; council has already done that.  What was 498 
presented tonight by Mr. Smith was discussed in detail at the workshop and everyone agreed to it.  That’s 499 
why she was confused. 500 
 501 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 10 of 18 
 

 Mayor Samples asked if everybody agreed. 502 
 503 
 Ms. Mabry said no, sir. 504 
 505 
 Mayor Samples did not believe that that he agreed, either.  There were other issues. 506 
 507 
 Mr. Stevens said he recalled that Ms. Mabry brought up registration stickers with former chief 508 
Frederick.  The registration stickers are one of the things that were a problem with the ordinance that was 509 
passed on December 10th, because it had a line that made it sound like the registration sticker was a 510 
parking sticker.  He recalled the registration stickers were a way for citizens to identify their golf carts, if 511 
they were stolen.   512 
 513 
 Mr. Samples said that registration was done prior to Ms. Mabry’s seating on council.  It was 514 
adopted under chief Christiansen after a rash of golf cart thefts.  But, that is not the point of tonight’s 515 
discussion.   516 
 517 
 Mr. Johnson referred to the sheet that Mr. Smith distributed and said it was what council 518 
discussed and it specifically pertains to Section 9-16, paragraph (a).   519 
 520 
 Mr. Samples asked council if that was what they wished to adopt, and asked when the remainder 521 
of the amendments to Section 9 would be presented, because there were several other items discussed.  522 
Ms. Fellner said that was right.  The other amendments would be presented at the next regular meeting, 523 
but the immediate issue is decals for nonresident residential property owners, and she decided to 524 
address this one small portion.  Mr. Samples said the one small portion is the issuance of many 525 
nonresident decals.  Ms. Fellner said that is the issue.  Mayor Samples reiterated that the best 526 
information he had is that last year the town issued a total of five nonresident decals.  He asked how 527 
many had been issued this year.  528 
 529 
 Mr. Stevens had received an email message from Ms. Fellner that stated 71 nonresidents got one 530 
parking decal; 7 nonresidents got two, and one nonresident got three. 531 
 532 
 Mayor Samples said there is a 1,500-percent increase one year over the other.  Ms. Fellner said 533 
with meters.   534 
 535 
 Mr. Stevens said as far as residents, one resident did get seven stickers.  Six residents, he was 536 
one of them, got four.  He doubted he would ever use them, but he got them.  There were a lot of them 537 
that got one. 538 
 539 
 Ms. Kohlmann said the bottom line is residents that live here year round got 708; nonresident 540 
households for a total of 88, but considering that we have new parking meters, she did not think that was 541 
drastic at all.  That was just her opinion.  She did not think that was a crazy number.   542 
 543 
 Mayor Sampled thought the issue was that the town has to pay to maintain the level of the quality 544 
down on the beach.  The town has to pay to maintain the roadway.  The town is just completing a major 545 
underground wiring project on the boulevard.  Those things cost money. 546 
 547 
 Mr. Johnson moved to reconvene regular session.  Mr. Stevens seconded.   All voted in favor.  548 
MOTION CARRIED. 549 
 550 
 Mr. Smith moved to adopt first reading of Ordinance 13-0734 to amend Article 9-16, paragraph 551 
(a).  Mr. Stevens seconded.   552 
 553 
 Mr. Smith moved to amend the motion to replace the current paragraph (a) with the proposed 554 
paragraph (a) that he had in his hand, and he would be happy to read that.  For the record, the clerk has 555 
a copy, and this concerns what council has been discussing; parking decals for full time residents. 556 
 557 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 11 of 18 
 

 Mr. Johnson called point of order asking if the procedure should be to make the motion to adopt 558 
as amended. 559 
 560 
 Mr. Smith said that a motion must be on the floor before it can be amended, and the way it’s 561 
stated he made the motion, and now he’s amending that motion, which is the proper procedure according 562 
to Robert’s Rules.   563 
 564 
 Mayor Samples accepted Mr. Smith’s interpretation of the rules.  There was no objection by 565 
council. 566 
 567 
 Mr. Smith asked if he should read the proposed amendment or whether council would accept it 568 
since it was distributed.  Mayor Samples said since it was distributed to members, he was satisfied. 569 
 570 
 Mr. Smith restated the motion to amend to replace current paragraph (a) with the paragraph (a) 571 
that council has been discussing and that the clerk has a copy of.  Mr. Stevens seconded.  Mayor 572 
Samples, and Councilmembers Dodge, Johnson, Kohlmann, Smith and Stevens voted in favor.  Mayor 573 
Pro Tempore Mabry voted against.  MOTION TO AMEND CARRIED.   574 
 575 
 There was no additional discussion on the primary motion.  Mayor Samples, and 576 
Councilmembers Dodge, Johnson, Kohlmann, Smith and Stevens voted in favor.  Mayor Pro Tempore 577 
Mabry voted against.  MOTION CARRIED AS AMENDED.   578 
 579 
 Mayor Samples said first reading was adopted and would be presented for second reading at the 580 
special meeting on April 17th.  Mayor Samples referred to the principal that allows newly adopted 581 
ordinance to be placed in effect immediately and said the town will charge nonresidents for additional 582 
stickers beginning tomorrow morning.  Ms. Fellner said yes, sir.  Mr. Smith said the first sticker is free.  583 
Mayor Samples asked staff to monitor decal distribution.   584 
 585 
 Mr. Smith offered to help whomever is working on the remainder of Section 9 to get it ready for 586 
council consideration.  Mayor Samples said council had discussed the possibility of Mr. Smith and 587 
another member addressing the sale of parking decals, and asked for a status.  Mr. Smith said Ms. 588 
Fellner was going to call a meeting, and he told her when he was available.  Ms. Fellner said a phone 589 
meeting is scheduled with Carrie Loomis with Lanier Parking Solutions.   590 
 591 
 E.  Resolution #12-116 to Establish ad hoc Beautification Committee, to consider Keep 592 
Surfside Beach Beautiful Committee (KSBB) recommendation to limit membership to 11 593 
appointees. 594 
 595 
 Ms. Herrmann explained that the resolution is the one approved by Town Council.  No changes 596 
were offered, because it is council’s decision as to how it should be amended.  The paragraph in question 597 
is the fourth paragraph that states “Whereas, Town Council has determined that said beautification 598 
committee shall consist of at least seven resident volunteers and a nonvoting member of Town Council.”   599 
The committee has offered a recommendation to limit membership to 11 members and it currently has 11 600 
members. 601 
 602 
 Mr. Smith moved to word paragraph four of Resolution #12-116 to state Town Council has 603 
determined that said beautification committee shall consist of not more than eleven resident volunteers 604 
and a nonvoting member of Town Council.  Ms. Kohlmann seconded.  All voted in favor.  MOTION 605 
CARRIED.  Ms. Herrmann said a corrected resolution would be presented for signature.    606 
 607 
 F.  Ad Hoc Committee Reports. 608 
  609 
 Mayor Samples asked if there were any comments about the committee reports.  610 
 611 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 12 of 18 
 

 Mr. Smith appreciated the reports.  He did not attend the meetings, because he did not want to 612 
interfere or unduly influence the committees.  He was pleased to find out what had been discussed.  He 613 
thanked the committees for the reports. 614 
 615 
 Mayor Samples said not all committees submitted a report and asked if there were any 616 
explanations.   617 
 618 
 Ms. Mabry had attended the historical board today and said its report is being prepared. 619 
 620 
 Mr. Stevens said the business committee is preparing its report. 621 
 622 
 Mr. Johnson said the infrastructure committee had yet to approve its report.  Mayor Samples said 623 
subcommittees were not asked to submit reports. 624 
 625 
 Mayor Samples asked staff to review the reports to identify any items that were worthy of budget 626 
consideration and present them for council consideration. 627 
 628 
 G.  Committee Appointments (May be deferred until after Executive Session.)  i.  Planning 629 
& Zoning Commission (1 Vacancy), Bill Trail, Jim Toney, Al Lauer; and ii. Construction Board of 630 
Appeals (2 vacancies) Gene Pecelli. 631 
  632 
 This item was deferred until after executive session. 633 
 634 
 8.  DISCUSSION

 637 

 – Any matters of concern or information to be discussed by Town 635 
Council.   636 

 Drug Paraphernalia, Mayor Pro Tempore Mabry and Councilmember Kohlmann.  Ms. 638 
Kohlmann said she had not yet met with Chief Keziah about the drug paraphernalia matter, but she 639 
wanted to let everyone know that she and Captain Miller had discussed it and the hope is to give the 640 
department another tool in which to enable this being a criminal offense instead of a civil penalty, which 641 
she believed was the case now.  Chief Keziah said that was correct.  Ms. Kohlmann said in order to 642 
combat Up in Smoke, because it’s going to be a lot of struggles with the laws in place now, and the state 643 
and federal laws.  Council was not giving up, Ms. Mabry and she were still working on it, but the big 644 
component is the police department.  They need to meet to work on the drug paraphernalia ordinance, 645 
and she knows Captain Miller has already done a lot of work on it.   646 
 647 
 Ms. Mabry said if it was agreeable with council, the ordinance should go to the town attorney to 648 
prepare a  proper ordinance to present to council.  They would like to have council’s consideration and 649 
approval.   650 
 651 
 Ms. Dodge complimented both councilmembers Kohlmann and Mabry for their work on this.  It’s 652 
difficult to say the least, and she thought they were up to the task.  She told them to keep it up and thank 653 
you. 654 
 655 
 Mr. Smith complimented Ms. Kohlmann and Ms. Mabry and said it was important that council 656 
have a first reading and approve this ordinance just to let folks now that the council is serious about 657 
stopping the proliferation of those drugs.   658 
 659 
 Mr. Stevens also commended both of those fine ladies for what they are doing.  This is an 660 
excellent step for Surfside, and he wanted to commend both of them. 661 
 662 
 Mr. Johnson concurred. 663 
 664 
 Mayor Samples agreed with the intent, but he wanted to be very careful, because it had been 665 
suggested that council not talk about specific businesses, but to talk about products that need to be 666 
regulated.  Designer drugs are a travesty, and frankly, the General Assembly needs to move forward to 667 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 13 of 18 
 

give the tools to the town to control them.  The ordinance that was previously drafted by Captain Miller 668 
during Chief Keziah’s absence in conjunction with Ms. Mabry and Ms. Kohlmann is an outstanding step 669 
forward.  Let us use, let us research, and try not to reinvent the wheel if there is some ordinance that is 670 
working in the State of South Carolina that will help the Town of Surfside Beach enforce and actually 671 
achieve the goals.  Mayor Samples suggested that council be careful about how the issue was 672 
approached.  Everyone wanted the same outcome, but no one wants the town losing a lawsuit.  He had 673 
no problem with the town being sued and winning.   674 
 675 
 Mr. Smith asked Ms. Fellner about the gate at the pier that was to be adjusted, moved, and so 676 
forth.  He asked whether that was to give better visibility to the tackle shop or some other reason.  Ms. 677 
Fellner said no; they are making a right angle where the old…it is not easy to explain without a diagram.  678 
Mr. Smith said the gate was at an angle and now it is going to be…  Ms. Fellner said the gate is going to 679 
be at an angle, but because they are getting an extra corner and they are moving the area where the gate 680 
connects, it has to be longer, and that particular gate has to be rebuilt.  The other smaller gate, which 681 
staff believed could be used is falling apart and the contractor showed us why it has to be rebuilt.  A small 682 
relatively inexpensive closed circuit camera will probably be used short term so that Pier Outfitter 683 
employees behind the counter can view the area and press the buzzer to allow entry.  Mr. Smith thanked 684 
her and said he knows she is working on the budget, but wanted her to think about the stormwater tax 685 
millage, which is coming up for renewal.  He asked if that would be done during the budget process.  Ms. 686 
Fellner said it would be discussed in the budget process.  Mr. Smith asked if the stormwater plan would 687 
also be part of the budget process.  Ms. Fellner said yes.  Mr. Smith said there was an article in the 688 
newspaper that reported Senator Cleary was trying to reduce real estate taxes by allowing people that 689 
had rental property to go from a 6-percent assessment to a 4-percent assessment.  He did not believe 690 
Ms. Fellner had had time to look at that, but it was an important issue for the town.  Ms. Fellner said it was 691 
a huge issue.  Mr. Smith asked if she knew what Myrtle Beach and North Myrtle Beach were doing in that 692 
regard; was a lobbyist been hired to work on that issue.  Ms. Fellner was not aware that had been done.  693 
Mr. Smith was not sure what approach should be taken, but wanted her to aware of it, because council 694 
needed to be advised as to whether a resolution should be sent to Senator Cleary and the other senators 695 
that had tried to hurt all the towns on the beach.  Ms. Fellner said absolutely.  Mr. Smith said some of the 696 
beach accesses, like 1st and 2nd Avenues North, have some palm trees and bushes that take up golf cart 697 
parking places.  He would like to leave the palm trees, but wanted the bushes to be relocated.  Ms. 698 
Fellner said that was already discussed.  She and Mr. Adair went to every golf cart parking area and that 699 
is on his “to do” list.  It just has not risen to the top yet.  Mr. Smith said that was what he wanted to hear; 700 
it’s on the “to do” list.  Ms. Fellner explained that the parking committee brought that forward.  Mr. Smith 701 
was happy with the commitment that it was on his list; he knows how busy he is, and said thank you. 702 
 703 
 Mayor Samples said that was a very important point about the tax bill as it relates to nonresident 704 
property owners.  This town has benefited greatly for many, many years as a result of that.  He said there 705 
is a League of Cities meeting on Thursday night, and he was sure that would be a topic amongst a 706 
number of the attendees.   707 
 708 
 9.  
 710 

PUBLIC COMMENTS. 709 

 “I’m Holly Watson.  I’m at 319 North Oak Drive.  I’ve been a resident of Surfside Beach for 27 711 
years.  Good evening.  I want to talk to you about our new overlay ordinance, and my concerns with 712 
redevelopment as pertains to resurfacing of a parking lot that’s in existence at this time.  In a small 713 
business…oh, let me speak for my credentials.  I’m a licensed contractor with the State of South Carolina.  714 
I personally hold the licenses for grading, asphalt paving, concrete paving, highway paving, and public 715 
utilities.  I’m also certified by South Carolina Department of Transportation in streets and roads, 716 
contractor’s licensing board, and a bidder’s license.  When, and as you know, we are pretty flat here in 717 
the Town of Surfside Beach.  There’s really no hills, no mountains.  We’re, we’re pretty well flat.  When 718 
our town was developed, these private parking lots were built so that the water would run off, and that we 719 
wouldn’t have ponding or any kind of problems.  Well, a lot of our private parking lots are built on FLBC 720 
base, not granite.  It gets gummy when it gets wet.  When you put asphalt over the top of it, you want to 721 
completely seal the parking lot.  You don’t want any water getting under, underneath your asphalt.  When 722 
council or the planning commission decided to include resurfacing in the overlay that meant that there 723 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 14 of 18 
 

would demand the property owner either dig up part of his parking lot and put the landscaping flush with 724 
the asphalt or build up a raised bed in the middle of the parking lot.  I don’t have a problem with going 725 
perimeter, and we’re trying to soften the look of Highway 17.  I’m all for beautification.  I’ve lived here a 726 
long time.  I’ve seen a lot of changes, but I really would love to see it more flowers and more trees.  My 727 
concern is that the property owner is having to do what’s called end-caps within the parking lot.  If he 728 
does end-caps within the parking lot, and he puts, number one [sic,] any landscaping flush with the 729 
asphalt all the water that goes to water those plants and all the natural rain fall is going to get up 730 
underneath the asphalt and that’s gonna disintegrate your asphalt in your parking lot.  It wasn’t designed 731 
to do that from the get go.  If you do a berm, a built up parking, a built up landscaped area, you’ve got to 732 
water it somehow.  That means you’ve gotta get irrigation lines to it.  You again have to dig up your 733 
existing parking lot.  Now the, I feel like the answer to this is to allow the property owner to go to the 734 
perimeter of his lot and dig his irrigation and put his plantings along 17 so that visually you will have a 735 
nice softening, cause that’s what we’re after anyway, the corridor.  Now, one of the things that’s stipulated 736 
was a 40-foot tree.  A 40-foot tree has roots that go out and that again, it’s gonna be up underneath your 737 
asphalt.  I don’t think that’s an option.  Not even bordering 17.  I mean, because you’re getting down into 738 
your drainage ditches.  So my concern is that that item needs to be taken off the table all together.  A 40-739 
foot tree has too big a roots, too long a roots.  Ask any horticulturist.  I, I don’t think that’s an option.  My 740 
concern is that none of our business owners know and with this ordinance on resurfacing won’t attempt to 741 
resurface their lots, because they’re going to have to dig up their parking lots.  They’re going to have to 742 
run irrigation.  They’re going to have to locate the gas and electrical lines that are already there.  They’re 743 
not only gonna have to pay for the plantings and the landscaping, but at the time they repave that lot it’s 744 
going to be a further and more expensive because the paving machines can’t get around the landscape 745 
areas.  These are just some things that I have (time ended) a concern about.  So, I thought I would bring 746 
them before council.  Thank you for your attention.” 747 
 748 
 “Ron Ott.  7th Avenue North, and of course, tonight’s meeting was interesting, and if we keep 749 
getting these special meetings I’m gonna have to cut back on my satellite TV.  I’ll tell you, these, going to 750 
the special meetings they can really confuse you.  Make your head spin.  I heard a lot of different things 751 
there, and I, I started thinking what, why do we have the council, mayor.  The people votes [sic] you in so 752 
you become our voice.  You, you speak for us.  You make decisions for us.  Then you look at what, 753 
what’s the reason why citizens have moved here.  In the last 20 years a lot of people have moved here, 754 
and everything’s really changed, and if I can make a speculation, first thing was the weather brought us 755 
here.  Number two, at least for myself, it’s the people.  Believe it.  Believe it or not, I came from a big city.  756 
May have been the City of Brotherly Love, but don’t believe that a little bit.  The third part, I wanted to be 757 
near the beach, and there was something very, very unique about Surfside Beach compared to 758 
everything else in this area.  It was un-crowded. It was, it was, you could ride your bike around here on 4th 759 
of July and there’s no traffic, and I, I, now, that becomes a concern for me and if you think about what’s 760 
happening and this young folk singer from California back in the 60s said this very well, I’m not gonna 761 
sing it, but what she said is you don’t know what you have until it’s gone.  Put up another parking space… 762 
do, do, do, do… do you remember the song?  We have to be very careful what we’re doing here.  In my 763 
opinion, we’re, what we have was always explained to me when I first moved here is less is more, and 764 
less was the height restrictions and the parking, there was only so much parking.  Part of that’s changing.  765 
We’re gonna, first of all we’re gonna add in all this parking.  And adding ten, 20, a 100 parking spaces we 766 
become dependent on the revenue.  Ideas come that we want two-story, three-story parking lots.  We’re 767 
taking away from what we have; that little uniqueness in this town.  The parking, special, special meeting, 768 
parking, boy I really got my head spun there.  We were, I heard coming through the microphones we 769 
could give free parking to everybody in Deerfield, okay.  We pay a little bit more tax than they do.  We get 770 
one bone thrown at us and that’s that privilege of free parking, okay.  You take that and you give it to 771 
everybody, we don’t have that anymore.  You know, and I respect the people over there, but we do pay 772 
for that.  It’s not free parking.  We have, we have a big nut that (**) pay to live on this side that the other 773 
people don’t.  And that, that is a concern if we start crowding it in.  We, we have a very unique (**) and 774 
that is less is more.  But I gotta ask you about the parking sticker.  I, I’ve been in town hall twice and they 775 
said no parking stickers.  So I can park tomorrow with just the square sticker.  But how about next week?  776 
We don’t know, and I ask you this, the people, the people that have gone already and gotten the 777 
registration and have been told you don’t need that other sticker, they’re gone.  They’re out there 778 
somewhere.  (**) they were there both times when I was there getting registrations, getting stickers.  779 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 15 of 18 
 

Nobody’s ever gonna tell them.  They’re just gonna get a ticket if we go to the round ones.  So it’d be like 780 
each sticker would be $4 a piece (**audience background noise).  We’re still concerned, when will that 781 
happen, and yeah, that, that designer drug is really a problem.  A very, very, a, a, smart person told me in 782 
this chamber, think about what these kids are doing.  They’re doing this, this synthetic drug.  We have no 783 
idea what it is.  We don’t know how it’s harming these children.  It could be affecting their genes or 784 
whatever.  So, the craziness is what would you rather have them do, Illegal marijuana, which has been 785 
proven out for the last 30 years, right, or this synthetic stuff.  I’m not advocating that we’re gonna legalize 786 
pot, but I’m just (time ended) saying this is how you look at it.  We’re selling this stuff in this town.  Maybe 787 
we could put that police car with the blow-up doll in it front of the place, I don’t know.”  Mayor Samples 788 
thanked Mr. Ott.  Mr. Ott:  “Was it my five minutes?”  Mayor Samples said yes, sir.  Mr. Ott:  “Thank you 789 
very much, thank you.”   790 
 791 
 “Carrie Johnson, 9th Avenue South.  I just have one question.  Do you all not like surfers, because 792 
up at 14th, you’ve got two places in town that they can surf.  Down at 13th South there’s a parking lot; 14th 793 
North there is none.  You put up all these palm trees up there and taken away all the good parking.  Even 794 
with the meters, there’s a few meters up there, but all of those palm trees up there, they’re taking up, and, 795 
and, I know that your intent was probably to push ‘em to the parking lot up there by the Holiday Inn, but 796 
when you’re coming to the beach, you may have a couple of kids with you, and you’ve got kid’s toys.  797 
You’ve got a cooler with waters [sic] in it.  You’ve got your surfboard.  You’ve got your chairs.  That’s a 798 
long way for somebody to have to walk that wants to surf.  So, I’m just ask you, you know, are you all so 799 
old that you don’t like young people anymore, cause you sure are trying to push ‘em out of town it seems 800 
like.  So, I think maybe you should consider moving those palm trees somewhere else and giving people 801 
up there that like to surf a place to park.  That’s all I have.  Thank you.” 802 
 803 
 “Good evening.  Ralph Magliette, 104 Harbor Lights Drive.  I just want to say my wife, Patti, and I, 804 
we love the Town of Surfside Beach.  A lot of wonderful things are happening to this town, and I just want 805 
to bring forward a few things that are happening starting the month of April that people are aware of and 806 
things are gonna be going on to help our senior population.  Starting in April and continuing on a monthly 807 
basis the second Monday of each month, there’s gonna be a senior morning movie at 9:30 a.m., and on 808 
the second Thursday of each month there’s gonna be a senior activity day at 10 a.m., and I have 809 
handouts of the, of this calendar and also of the first senior activity day that we’re gonna have at the se, 810 
at the library, and it’s gonna be an introduction to computers.  There’s no registration required.  The class 811 
is designed for those who have never used a computer before.  They’ll learn terms and how to navigate 812 
the Internet, mouse and keyboard touch skills, and we’ll also have a handout to give the seniors as far as 813 
the just basic understanding of how computers work.  It’s interesting when we were looking at a survey for 814 
the seniors in town how many seniors in their 70s and 80s don’t have any computer skills, and are afraid 815 
of computers.  They’re afraid of technology, and so what, what we’ve tried to do with, a, (**) White, who is 816 
the manager of the library, and a, Mike, the reference librarian, is to give programs to get seniors 817 
comfortable with the technology, provide hands-on learning, not in a big class of 15 or 20 people, but on a 818 
one-on-one or two-on-one so that the people can learn to use the computers, learn how to use emails.  819 
It’s very, very important that people be hooked up to that.  There’s many, many things that people can do 820 
with computers.  We all know that.  From buying your drugs, I mean prescription drugs (**laughter), 821 
through the mail order, (**) internet account.  There’s also electronic banking.  There’s, they’ll be able to 822 
share pictures with people.  There’s a whole bunch of things that people can do; even downloading, if you 823 
have a Netflix account, movies and things.  That’s especially true for seniors who maybe now no longer 824 
can [sic] able to drive, and who, a, you know, want to have, be able to share with their family and friends.  825 
So, I have copies of the senior day computer class.  It’s kind of funny that I had asked to put it out on 826 
website, when the people who need it don’t know how to use the website.  So, what good did it do? That’s 827 
why I decided to come here tonight.  I’m thinking how stupid could I be (laughter) to say put it on there, 828 
when the whole idea is to tell people, so I have copies here for anybody that wants ‘em, so please, if you 829 
know any seniors that are maybe computer phobic, it’s gonna be a complete hands-on, our Mike is very 830 
good about that, it’s gonna be Thursday, April 11th, from 10 to 11 a.m., and additionally to that, because 831 
this is our, the kickoff, there’s also gonna be two additional classes.  It’s gonna be on Monday the 22nd, 832 
it’s gonna be introduction to computers.  You will actually get to sit down with a computer.  There’s a 833 
computer there to just learn how to turn it on; how to use the keyboard; how to use the mouse.  Then on 834 
the 23rd, there’s gonna be an introduction to emails, an Internet class.  How to sign up to use emails.  835 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 16 of 18 
 

How to send and receive messages.  How the Internet works, and these are gonna be on-going, so what I 836 
have here, I’m sorry if I’ve taken too much time, I have the calendar, which lists all those programs, and 837 
also have the senior activity day computer class.  So please, if you know seniors in your neighborhood or 838 
a computer phobic who have [sic] been saying, you know what, I’d like to learn how to use a computer 839 
but, I’m just too afraid.  We have these programs available to you to teach you how to use a computer.  840 
To help you hands-on, and not to be afraid and you know, become part of the, a, the Internet, because it’s 841 
a wonderful place to be.  So, if you don’t mind, I would just, I don’t know who to hand…leave ‘em in the 842 
back row?  Pick ‘em up, or I could just.”  Ms. Herrmann asked him to just put them on the chairs in the 843 
front row and people could pick them up.  Mr. Magliette:  “(** Speaking away from microphone) …there’s 844 
no preregistration required.  If you know anyone in town who you think might be a, have use for those 845 
programs, please let them know about it, and thank you very much, and God bless you, and again, 846 
Surfside Beach is a wonderful town.  God bless you.  Thank you.”  Mr. Stevens asked for the class dates 847 
again.  Mr. Magliette:  “(**) …on the calendar of events (time ended) and that’s gonna be on the 22nd, 848 
introduction to computers, it’s 11:30 a.m. and on the 23rd at 11:30 a.m. introduction to email and the 849 
Internet, and those are signups.  But what we’re talking about on Thursday is free.  There’s no 850 
registration.  People can walk in and it will first be 20 minutes talking about computers in general.  Many 851 
people feel comfortable about it, and if people then feel comfortable they will have the option to actually 852 
sit at a computer and just get the feel of it and take it one small step at a time.  Thank you.”  Mayor 853 
Samples thanked Mr. Magliette and said there were plenty of copies available; be sure to get one. 854 
 855 
 10.  
 857 

COUNCIL COMMENTS. 856 

 Mr. Johnson:  “Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  Thanks for coming out.  It’s been a rather nice meeting, 858 
actually.” 859 
 860 
 Ms. Dodge:  “That was a good one.  I wanted to say thank you to Mr. Ott for his remarks.  He 861 
always has some thoughtful comments and that’s appreciated.  He also makes me chuckle, and that I 862 
need that, and I want to thank Mr. Magliette.  He and his wife are two hard working people in our 863 
community and they deserve our thanks.  The computer program that he is, is sponsoring for the senior 864 
citizens is excellent.  I just want him to know that I figured out how to turn the volume down on my 865 
computer today.  Yes!  (laughter)  And, I also wanted to comment on the surfers.  They are young people.  866 
They can walk to where they need to get to, I think.  I don’t know how heavy their boards are, but I think 867 
they can probably manage to get to where they need to get to in the ocean to surf, but glad they’re out 868 
there doing it.  Thank you very much.”  869 
 870 
 Mr. Smith:  “The a people who a have golf cart registrations and do not have round parking 871 
decals, they will be notified by the town hall when it’s legal to issue those parking decals.  So don’t fear, 872 
you won’t be getting a ticket unless you become negligent after you’ve been notified and don’t come up 873 
here and get your ticket [sic.]  The other thing is, a, we don’t ever intend to build a parking garage in 874 
Surfside Beach.  That’s one thing I like about Surfside Beach, no parking garages, and that’s a concern I 875 
that I have with the limited parking in the, a, C-3 commercial areas, and I think that, a, the plan has been 876 
presented.  Once we have a full understanding, it’ll probably be what we are looking for.  It requires 877 
parking, but not the enormous amount of parking according to the current regulation.  Thank you.” 878 
 879 
 Ms. Mabry:  “Yeah, let’s start off with some good news.  The Jamin’ Leather has been sold, and 880 
Rick Worley, I happen to know him, bought it.  He has a store in, a, Conway, called the Wild West.  It is 881 
an equine store.  It’s not a bar, or anything like that.  They sell a lot of trailers, a lot of horse equipment, 882 
and a, and I used to have horses, so I know him.  He is gonna be getting a lot of visitors to our town from 883 
Andrews, from the Waccamaw Neck area, from all those areas where’s there’s a lot of horse people.  884 
They’ll be coming into Surfside to use his store, and then they’ll be, the first time maybe, using our town, 885 
eating in our restaurants, cause it’s a haul.  It’s not, you know, we’re talking an hour, an hour and a half 886 
just to go to the store, and it’s the same distance if they went 701 to go down to Conway.  So, he’s 887 
looking to get a lot of his regular customers.  He’s keeping his store in Conway, which is very successful, 888 
and he’ll be bringing ‘em in to Surfside.  So, we’re gonna get a lot of new folk visiting our town, and I think 889 
that is great.  I talked to him today, and he’s kept me appraised [sic] of, he did say he hoped to be open in 890 
a month.  I hope everybody stops by and visits.  I don’t think that we have a big horse population here, 891 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 17 of 18 
 

but you know, we can at least go in and say hello, and I, I’ll probably try to beg P. L. for another one after 892 
I, they get here.  I also wanted to say please write your [sic] Senator Cleary.  I cannot stress enough how 893 
important it is not to lose our businesses and that’s what we’re talking about, losing a great deal of our 894 
business in the rental district.  When you go to 4-percent to 6-percent, that is, is, it sounds like you’re 895 
along going up 2-percent.  You’re almost doubling the tax, so it, it is tremendous.  That can hurt us a lot.  896 
Please, if you can, sit down.  He has a website, you can go on it.  I’ve already done it, and just send him a 897 
note.  If you can do that, I’d appreciate it.” 898 
 899 
 Mr. Stevens:  “Thank y’all for coming out.  Glad everybody got out here and I appreciate the, a, 900 
people who made comments.  Ralph Magliette is working real hard to get things done in this town, and 901 
doing a lot for the seniors.  Ron Ott always has a funny comment, and he’s always welcome.  As far as 902 
other things we’ve done, the parking and all that, that’s all gone [sic] work out.  We’ll get that done and 903 
we’ll get it satisfactory for everybody.  Thank you for your time.” 904 
 905 
 Ms. Kohlmann:  “I’d just like to take a minute to thank our staff.  Everybody does a very good job, 906 
and a, I think sometimes we forget to say thank you to each and every one of them.  The police officers, 907 
they keep us safe, and a, run into what we all run away from, and the fire department, as well, and just 908 
our every day staff members that are out there.  When you see them out there doing their job, just wave 909 
or say hello.  It really, I think it goes a long way.  Have a good night.” 910 
 911 
 Mayor Samples:  "Well, I want to thank the council for putting in the time, doing the work, thinking.  912 
We don’t always agree, but you wouldn’t want us to.  I mean that’s not democracy.  This is, it’s a messy 913 
business, but we’re doing the best we can, and I, too, share the pleasure of having people come in, 914 
spend your time, be [sic] and participate, and your town government.  I’m also, I think we’re all thrilled that 915 
the committees that we set up less than a year ago, okay, less than a year ago, producing products and 916 
results and the individuals are committed to the task they’ve been given, and I think that’s something that 917 
we, we all in town should be proud of, and we have, we’ve by design implemented resolutions, 918 
established, we heard about policies and procedures last night, and that sort of thing.  A lot of what we 919 
have isn’t written down; it is by tradition.  But, a lot of what we have today were conscious decisions that 920 
this council made to put in place, and you know, like any family, we’re gonna have our little bumps in the 921 
road.  But a, we live in a great town, and I would just reiterate let Senator Cleary know.  It is important.  It 922 
represents a significant portion of our property tax revenue money that we collect.  That’s where that, the, 923 
the market value is.  We all know that, otherwise, some of us might choose to live on the ocean front.  924 
But, but the factor of the matter is, those taxes that are paid by those businesses, that is nonresident 925 
property owners down there, is what enables us to be able to provide the quality of service which we 926 
expect in this town, and we don’t want to go in the wrong direction with this.  So let Senator Cleary know.  927 
Anyway, thank you.”        928 
 929 
 930 
 11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION

 934 

 - Pursuant to FOIA §30-4-70(a)(1) to discuss employment, 931 
appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release of an employee, or the 932 
appointment of a person to a public body. 933 

 Mr. Smith moved to enter executive session at 8:34 p.m.  Mr. Stevens seconded.  All members 935 
voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 936 
 937 
 Mr. Smith moved to reconvene regular session at 9:29 p.m.  Ms. Mabry seconded.  All voted in 938 
favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 939 
 940 
 Mayor Samples said that no action was taken during executive session.   941 
 942 
 Mr. Johnson moved to appoint Al Lauer to the planning and zoning commission.  Ms. Mabry 943 
seconded.  All members voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 944 
 945 
 Mr. Johnson moved to appoint Gene Pecelli to the construction board of appeals.  Ms. Kohlmann 946 
seconded.  All members voted in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 947 



Regular Town Council Meeting 
April 9, 2013 

Page 18 of 18 
 

 948 
 12.  ADJOURNMENT.
 950 

   949 

 Mr. Smith moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 p.m.  Ms. Dodge seconded.  All members voted 951 
in favor.  MOTION CARRIED. 952 
 953 
      Prepared and submitted by, 954 
 955 
      _____________________________________________  956 
      Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 957 
 958 
Approved:   April 23, 2013 959 
 960 
 961 

____________________________________ 962 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 963 

         964 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 965 
Mary Beth Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore    Ann Dodge, Town Council    966 
 967 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 968 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council       Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 969 
 970 
_______________________________________ ______________________________________ 971 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council   Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 972 
 973 
 974 
Clerk’s Note:  This document constitutes minutes of the meeting that was audio taped.  These are detailed minutes 975 
documenting each member’s comments.  In accordance with FOIA, meeting notice and the agenda were distributed 976 
to local media and interested parties. The agenda was posted on the entry door at Town Council Chambers, and in 977 
the Town Hall reception area,.  Meeting notice was also posted on the Town marquee.  Public Comments and Town 978 
Council Comments are transcribed as close to verbatim as possible.  When (**) is used a section of the transcription 979 
is inaudible.  Appointments to hear audio tapes may be scheduled with the town clerk.    980 



 
 

Proclamation #13-83 

Peace Officers Memorial Day 
May 15, 2013 

 
 WHEREAS, the Congress and President of the United States have designed May 15 as Peace 
Officers Memorial Day; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the members of the law enforcement agencies of the Town of Surfside beach play an 
essential role in safeguarding the rights and freedoms of the citizens of our community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is important that all citizens now and understand the duties, responsibilities, 
hazards and sacrifices of their law enforcement officers and that law enforcement officers recognize 
their duty to serve the people of this community, by protecting them against violence and disorder; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the law enforcement officers of the Town of Surfside Beach unceasingly provide a vital 
public service.     
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas F. Samples, Mayor of the Town of Surfside Beach, do hereby 
proclaim  
 

 
 

  
 AND FURTHER, direct that all flags on Town buildings be flown at half staff on May 15, 2013 in 
recognition of Peace Officers Memorial Day and in memory of those law enforcement officers, who 
through their courageous deeds have made the ultimate sacrifice in service to their community or have 
become disabled in the performance of duty, and to honor those law enforcement officers presently 
serving the community. 
 
 BE IT SO PROCLAIMED this 23rd day of April 2013. 
 
      

_____________________________________________________ 
The Hon. Douglas F. Sample, Mayor 

 
           Attest: 
 
        ________________________________________ 
        Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk  
      















RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
APRIL 2013 

MONTHLY REPORT 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 
 
 
The Easter “Egg”stravaganza was held at Martin Field on Saturday, March 30th from 2 pm to 4 pm.  The event 
consisted of a train ride, two inflatables, four carnival games, face painting, popcorn and cotton candy.  All of 
these activities were free to the children.  At the entrance, each child was given four tickets which were used at 
the carnival games where each child received a small prize.  Five hundred sets of tickets were distributed.  
 
Feedback on this event was not favorable.  Everyone who attended assumed the event included an egg hunt and 
were extremely disappointed to find out there wasn’t one.  Many people stayed however many people left as the 
lines were long for each station.  The parking situation at Martin Field was horrible.  Discussions will be held to 
regroup, revamp and revise this event for next year.   
 
There was also a jelly bean count and each participant completed a card with name, address and their guess for 
the number of jelly beans which resulted in the following numbers:  182 total cards; 146 locals, 36 tourists.  I do 
believe many of the 146 “locals” were family visiting locals.  The jelly bean count was won by 8 year old Paxton 
Holden from North Carolina who was visiting his grandparents, Troy and Pattie Holden on 3rd Avenue South in 
Surfside Beach.  Thank you to Harry Kohlmann for manning his station and to Councilwoman, Beth Kohlmann for 
her assistance at the event as well. 
 
A Pet Fair was conducted at the Surfside Beach Bark Park on Saturday, April 13th from 9 am to 12 pm.  The event 
included a rabies clinic conducted by Ark Animal Hospital in Surfside Beach as well as eleven vendors that 
included the following local rescue organizations:  Grand Strand Golden Retriever Rescue, Grateful Goldens 
Rescue, Coastal Animal Rescue, Castaway Paws Rescue. St. Francis Animal Center, Phoenix Rising Border 
Collie Rescue and Noah Program.  There were over 30 dogs available on site for adoption and five were adopted 
during the event.  Dr. Mavris with Ark Animal Hospital vaccinated 64 dogs which is 20 more than last year.  A 
huge thank you to Dr. Mavris and her staff for their participation each year. 
 
Update on the Youth Association:  Regular season for baseball and softball ages 9 through 14 began April 8th with 
games being played at Huckabee and practice at Martin Field.  Registration for T-ball, Coach Pitch, and Kid Pitch, 
ages 4 through 8, began April 1st and is still ongoing.  Registration is online only at www.surfsidesports.org and 
this season will begin May 20th.  Knights of Columbus decided against operating the concession stand and the 
youth association board members are operating it at this time. 
 
UPCOMING EVENTS 
 
1.  BEACH MUSIC PARTY – Friday, May 3rd – 5 pm to 8 pm – pier parking lot 
 
2.  MEMORIAL DAY COOKOUT – Sunday, May 26th – 4 pm to 8 pm – Surfside Drive 
 
3.  MEMORIAL DAY SERVICE – Monday, May 27th – 2:30 pm – Veterans Memorial 

http://www.surfsidesports.org/�


  

 
PUBLIC WORKS MONTHLY REPORT 

March 21st – April 17th, 2013 
 

 
SANITATION DIVISION (FTEs – 8) 
 
Residential Service – Eight carts were delivered to accounts; one once the certificate of occupancy had 
been issued and seven due to owners’ requests.  Three carts were repaired and eleven carts were replaced.  
Five carts were removed; one from a house being moved and four per residents’ requests.  Sanitation 
supervisor responded to five calls regarding ordinance enforcement; thirty-five calls regarding late put 
outs and/or questions about bulk/yard debris pick up, six calls involving billing issues, six miscellaneous 
calls and/or questions and seven complaints.   
 
Commercial Service – Service routes continue to be updated based on business needs.  Three accounts 
increased service days and two required extra pick-up services due to overflow.  Supervisor explained 
commercial collection schedules to four new businesses, (Jimmyz Hibachi, Opa, Charz Family Grill, & 
Ocean Blue By-U).  Crew responded to two calls regarding ordinance enforcement and four 
miscellaneous calls.  
 
Recycling News – Eight carts were delivered to town residents and three 95G carts to businesses upon 
request.   One cart was replaced.  Nine carts were removed per request.  Supervisor responded to three 
miscellaneous calls with questions about recycling.  
 
Summer Sanitation – To date, 385 exemption requests have been received and verified.  Three times a 
week rollout service is scheduled to begin on May 12th and continue through September 8th.         
 
E-Waste – Our next Hazardous Household Waste/Unwanted Electronic Waste drop off event is 
scheduled for Friday, April 26th through Sunday, April 28th from 9am to 1pm at Public Works.          
 
In March we collected 298.55 tons of solid waste, 26.09 tons of mixed debris, 197.76 tons of yard debris, 
and 33.32 tons of recyclables.   
 
 
STREETS & DRAINAGE DIVISION (FTEs –8) 
 
The Beach – Swash outlets being dug out to ensure proper water flow as needed.  Beach trash and recycle 
cans are being checked and serviced twice a week, weather permitting.   Weekend servicing of cans will 
begin on May 4th.   
 
On-going/Special Projects: 
 

• Boggs Paving has resurfaced several town streets.  
• Crews are reinforcing a retaining wall between 14th and 15th Avenues South.  
• 50/50 Ditch Piping program – seven projects have been completed this season.  The program has 

been suspended for the spring/summer but applications are still being accepted for consideration 
when the program resumes in the fall.     

• Shower Towers are on order and will be installed at 6th Avenues North and South Beach accesses 
before the summer season.  Maintenance and repairs have been performed on existing showers at 
the beach accesses.        

• Mowing and trash pick-up is being done on medians, town right-of-ways and parking lots, 
weather permitting.   

• Street sweeping is being done on Mondays and Fridays, weather and time permitting.         
• Crews continue to perform maintenance and clean-up of drainage ditches and catch basins 

throughout town. 



  

• Dirt – Crews completed five deliveries to town residents.  Dirt is still available free of charge to 
town residents who come to Scipio Lane and load up the dirt themselves between the hours of 
8:00am until 3:00pm on the third Saturday of each month.  Town residents requesting delivery 
must have the Public Works Director or Street Supervisor inspect the delivery site and issue an 
inspection ticket confirming proper usage of the dirt prior to placing an order at Town Hall.  This 
inspection will insure that the dirt is not being used to fill in ditches and/or swales that would 
interfere with our storm water drainage.  An appointment can be made to pick up dirt other days 
by calling Public Works at (843) 913-6360.    

• Seven reports were sent to Santee Cooper identifying street lights that were not functioning 
properly.  

• Crew assisted with the Surfside Rotary Race held on April 20th.     
• From March 21st through April 17th Public Works assistant answered 334 incoming calls.   

189 of those calls dealt with sanitation questions/concerns/complaints;  3 calls were from vendors 
providing product information and/or quotes;  52 calls dealt with street/drainage issues, 
streetlights, and questions about driveway inspections and dirt delivery;  19 calls dealt with 
parking meter questions/concerns;  17 calls dealt with parks/grounds issues; 14 were internal calls 
dealing with department and/or personnel issues and/or questions;   29 calls were received for the 
Public Works Director; 11 calls dealt with  miscellaneous questions, wrong departments and/or 
telemarketers. 

 
GROUNDS DIVISION (FTEs-4) 
 

• Bid for construction of an ADA compliant restroom at Huckabee has been awarded to L&J 
Construction, LLC.      

• Fountains are on order and will be installed in Magnolia Lake.     
• Athletic fields at Huckabee and Martin parks are being maintained throughout baseball season.    
• Crews have resumed spraying of town lakes.   
• Crews continue to spruce up Town properties and parks, as well as weeding and trimming.   
• Crew assisted with the Surfside Rotary Race held on April 20th.     

  
 
FLEET MAINTENANCE DIVISION (FTE-2) 
 
From March 21st through April 17th our mechanics completed forty-eight (48) repairs on Town vehicles 
and equipment.  Six (6) vehicles had flats repaired and four (4) vehicles had tires replaced.  Bi-weekly 
fleet tires checks and fire extinguisher inspections were completed on all Public Works vehicles and/or 
equipment.   “Preventive” and “Scheduled” maintenance (consisting of lube, oil & filter changes, brake 
inspections, tire rotations and fluid checks) were performed on thirty-four (34) Town vehicles and/or 
equipment.  
 
FACILITIES (FTE-2)   
   

• Crew replaced 6 dugout roofs at Huckabee Park. 
   

 
PIER – F.E. Baiden & Associates, LLC. has substantially completed the installation of an ADA ramp and 
deck expansion at the Pier.           
 
ADDITIONAL NOTES  
 
All divisions attended a Stormwater video training session that presented information on illicit discharge 
detection and elimination.    
 
 Monday, April 29th “Summer Hours” take effect for all Public Works crews.  Office hours will be from 
6:00 am – 3:00 pm Monday through Friday; we close for lunch from 11:00 am – 12:00 pm.   































 

      State of South Carolina  )   
    County of Horry  ) Resolution #13-132  
    Town of Surfside Beach )  
 

In Support of the  
Marketplace Fairness Act (S336 and HR 684) 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside Beach Town Council in chambers duly 
assembled in a regularly scheduled meeting held on the 23rd day of April 2013;  
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Main Street retailers have been hurt in recent years by online 
and catalog purchases by customers who believe they get a discount by not 
paying sales tax; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the brick-and-mortar retailer collects the sales tax at the time of 
purchase in a store, but the responsibility for paying the tax from an online 
purchase shifts to the Internet customer who should pay the sales tax when 
filing his annual state tax returns; and 
 
 WHEREAS, most taxpayers are not aware of the responsibility to remit 
these taxes, and state and local governments do not have the resources to 
enforce payment putting Main Street retailers at a 5- to 10-percent competitive 
price disadvantage to remote sellers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Supreme Court decision in Quill Corp. v. North Dakota, 504 
U.S. 298 (1992), left state and local governments unable to adequately enforce 
their existing sales tax laws on sales by out-of-state catalog and online sellers; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Court did state that Congress had the constitutional 
authority to pass legislation overruling its decision; if Congress acts to regulate 
interstate commerce, state and local governments could collect taxes owed on 
Internet and mail order sales amounting to $23 billion; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Marketplace Fairness Act would grant states the authority 
to require out-of-state online and catalog retailers to collect sales taxes at the 
time of a transaction, exactly like local retailers are already required to do; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act would only grant this authority to states that simplify 
their sales tax laws in order to ease compliance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, keeping track of local tax rates is no longer an insurmountable 
technical, administrative, or financial burden.   



 

Resolution #13-132 
 In Support of the  

Marketplace Fairness Act (S336 and HR 684) 
Page Two 

_____________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Surfside Beach 
Town Council does hereby adopt Resolution #13-132 urging the members of 
the South Carolina Congressional delegation to support the Marketplace 
Fairness Act (S336 and HR684) to level the playing field for Main Street 
businesses by allowing individual states the authority to streamline their sales 
tax laws and collect sales taxes directly from online retailers.  
    
 BE IT SO RESOLVED, this 23rd day of April 2013. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Mary M. Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore  Ann Dodge, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council     Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council  Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 
 
         
       Attest: 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 



 

 State of South Carolina  )   
 County of Horry   ) Resolution #13-133  
 Town of Surfside Beach )  
 

In Opposition to Reduction or Elimination of the 
Tax Exemption on Municipal Bond Interest 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside Beach Town Council in chambers duly 
assembled in a regularly scheduled meeting held on the 23rd day of April 2013; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Congress is considering many options available to reduce the 
federal deficit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, one option Congress is evaluating would reduce or eliminate 
the exemption on municipal bond interest; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the federal tax exemption on municipal bond interest has been 
in place since the first federal income tax was enacted in 1913, and as a result, 
state and local governments save on average two percentage points on their 
borrowing to finance investment in public infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this exemption has generated trillions of dollars of investment 
in public infrastructure and has saved taxpayers hundreds of billions in interest 
costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, investors in municipal bonds are generally exempt from paying 
federal income tax on the bond interest payments so even a partial income tax 
on otherwise tax-exempt interest would cause investors to demand higher 
returns on their municipal bond investments to make up for the tax they would 
have to pay; and  
 
 WHEREAS, one proposal being discussed would apply to interest on bonds 
already issued by governments and purchased by investors; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this would represent a violation of the basic assumption of 
investors that Congress will not change the terms governing the taxability of 
interest for bonds already outstanding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the outcome of reducing or eliminating the tax exemption on 
municipal bond interest would be higher borrowing costs for state and local 
governments, less investment in infrastructure and fewer jobs. 
 

 



 

 Resolution #13-133 
In Opposition to Reduction or Elimination of the 

Tax Exemption on Municipal Bond Interest 
Page Two 

________________________________________________ 
 

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Surfside Beach 
Town Council does hereby  adopt Resolution #13-133 in opposition to 
reduction nor elimination of the tax exemption on municipal bond interest, and 
hereby urge the members of the South Carolina Congressional delegation to 
strongly oppose any efforts by Congress or the Administration to reduce or 
eliminate the tax exemption on municipal bond interest. 
 
 BE IT SO RESOLVED, this 23rd day of April 2013. 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Douglas F. Samples, Mayor 

         
_______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Mary M. Mabry, Mayor Pro Tempore  Ann Dodge, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Mark L. Johnson, Town Council     Elizabeth A. Kohlmann, Town Council 
 
_______________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Roderick E. Smith, Town Council  Randle M. Stevens, Town Council 
 
         
       Attest: 
 
       ________________________________________ 
       Debra E. Herrmann, CMC, Town Clerk 

 

















How “fit” is your local government? Yes No 
Do you have a well-defined vision for your community 5 years from now? 3 
If the council were asked what are the top 5-7 key issues for the town would they match up? 2 1 
Do you regularly met to review how well you’re doing? 2 1 

Do you have a tendency to meet “just to meet” without any real purpose or accomplishment? 3 

Do you have study sessions to “brainstorm” about critical issues? 3 

Does the council have a sense of “partnership” with other governing bodies in the area? 2 1 

Do you have mechanisms for getting citizens involved? 3 

Does every member of your council assume some responsibility for speaking on behalf of the 
community and your government? 

2 1 

Is there a “sense of teamwork” between elected officials & management staff? 1 2 

Do you meet regularly to evaluate your performance “as a team?” 3 

Are team members supportive of each other even when they disagree on a particular issue? 3 

ORGANIZATIONAL WELLNESS – 3 Responses Submitted 



GOAL SETTING Almost  
Always 

Sometimes Never 

Are established council goals realistic and “do-able” within the time 
frame stated? 

1 2 

Do councilmembers participate sufficiently in implementing goals 
once established? 

3 

Is the public adequately informed about council goals? 1 2 

POLICY MAKING 

Are council positions and policies effectively communicated? 3 

Does the council have the capacity to make hard choices and 
politically unpopular decisions when required or necessary? 

2 1 

 
GOVERNING BODY  EVALUATION 



BUDGETING Almost 
Always 

Sometimes Never 

Does the council clearly understand the town’s financial resources in order to 
make sound decisions on prioritizing public spending?  (1 no answer) 

1 1 

Is there adequate opportunity for a cross-section of public participation in the 
budgeting process? 

2 1 

Does the council avoid unbudgeted appropriations?   (1 no answer) 2 

Does the council consider the budget “their” budget as opposed to the staff’s 
budget?               (1 no answer) 

1 1 

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAFF 

Does the council establish reasonable time frames for staff to accomplish 
assignments? 

1 1 1 

Does the council change its priorities without considering the impact on staff 
time? 

3 

Does the council give adequate consideration to staff recommendations? 1 1 1 

Do council members limit contacts with staff members to inquiries and 
suggestions as opposed to giving direction?   (1 no answer) 

1 1 



COUNCIL MEETINGS Almost 
always 

Sometimes Never 

Does the council provide for adequate public input at council meetings? 3 

Does each council member effectively participate in council meetings? 2 1 

Does the staff have adequate opportunity for input before making it decision? 1 2 

Is the council meeting time well utilized? 1 2 

Are there items discussed by council that should be more properly handled to 
allow for public and/or staff input? 

3 

Are relevant facts and opinions expressed before decisions are made or 
council positions stated? 

2 1 

Do council members respect each other’s opinions during council meetings? 2 1 

Is direction given to staff clear & concise? 3 




























































	04232013_tc_agenda_6bii_recreation.pdf
	SPECIAL EVENTS
	UPCOMING EVENTS

	04232013_tc_agenda_6biii_public_works.pdf
	SANITATION DIVISION (FTEs – 8)
	Residential Service – Eight carts were delivered to accounts; one once the certificate of occupancy had been issued and seven due to owners’ requests.  Three carts were repaired and eleven carts were replaced.  Five carts were removed; one from a hous...

	04232013_tc_agenda_8a_organizational_wellness.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4


